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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

VISION STATEMENT

To become a partner in the growth of economy by
providing affordable electricity.

MISSION STATEMENT

The Mission of Altern Energy Limited is to assume
leading role in the power industry by;

Ensuring long term growth of the company through competitive
and creative strategy,

Achieving the highest level of indigenization,

Preserving environmentally friendly outlook,

Creating an efficient and effective workforce,

Conducting Business as a good corporate citizen,

Developing strong long term relations with industry partners.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

It is my pleasure to present to you financial results of Altern Energy Limited for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Over the course of the last few years, power generation business has changed completely due to notable 
increase in power generation capacity in the country resulting in reduction of shortfall in supply of electricity. 
Moreover, on the global front, focus has shifted from thermal power to renewable energy. Now that the 
country has surplus energy, the Pakistan government is also shifting its focus on renewable energy and a new 
Alternate and Renewable Energy (ARE) policy is under preparation. As we move into the future, the 
Government will try to improve the energy mix for cost efficiency by adding ARE projects. At the same time, 
more investment will be required in the transmission and distribution systems to reap the benefits of 
additional power. 

The Board is fully aware of its role and responsibility to contribute towards rehabilitation of the power sector 
which will ultimately benefit the country in the longer run. Our active role in the power sector is evident from 
investment in another Independent Power Producer namely Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited; a 450 Mega 
Watts gas- fired combined cycle thermal power plant. 

Our country has faced severe decline in gas reserves. As a result Altern faced frequent gas suspensions by 
SNGPL in the recent past. Resultantly in 2017, the Board of Directors of Altern authorized management to 
avail Re-gasified Liquid Natural Gas (RLNG) to produce electricity in place of indigenous gas. However, as a 
result of the rising RLNG prices since last year owing to increase in Brent prices and devaluation of Pak 
Rupee against US Dollar, Altern has been facing a sharp decline in dispatch demand from NPCC, resulting in 
loss of capacity revenue. The Company, having a contract with the off-taker Central Power Purchasing 
Agency (Guarantee) Limited (CPPA-G) on take-and-pay basis, faces a challenge to honour its contractual 
obligations under the Power Purchase Agreement due to a significant reduction in revenue as a result of 
reduced demand from NPCC. Despite challenges of liquidity on account of circular debt being faced by the 
energy sector, low-demand from CPPA-G in the previous year, and suspension of gas at occasions, the 
Company has managed to keep its plant operational by maintaining its focus on reliable plant operations by 
executing routine and major maintenance activities of the Complex.

Although, both companies, Altern and Rousch have faced challenges in the recent past in terms of gas 
availability especially during the winter and its impact on circular debt, yet we have been able to manage the 
operations with dedication and perseverance in these challenging times. 

I would conclude by conveying my appreciation to the AEL Board of Directors who have contributed 
immensely by supporting and advising management to maintain Company's focus to minimise the impact of 
the disruption taking place in the regulatory and operational environment. I also extend my appreciation to 
Company's management for their response to minimise the effects of the adverse operating environment. I 
acknowledge the support of our valued Shareholders for their trust in the abilities of the Board and 
management to deliver optimal results in the most challenging circumstances. 

Lahore - September 30, 2019

Taimur Dawood
     Chairman 

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED
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The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the annual report together with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2019.

The principal activities of the Company continue to be ownership, operation and maintenance of a 32 Mega 
Watts gas-fired thermal power plant located near Fateh Jang, district Attock, Punjab, and sale of electricity. 
The electricity produced is sold to its sole customer Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited 
('CPPA-G') through the transmission network of National Transmission and Dispatch Company ('NTDC'). 

The Company's shares are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company owns 100% shares of Power 
Management Company (Private) Limited (a special purpose vehicle) which in turn holds 59.98% shares of 
Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited ('RPPL'). RPPL is an unlisted public company and an independent power 
producer having a gross capacity of 450 Mega Watts from its gas-fired combined cycle thermal power plant, 
located near Sidhnai Barrage, Abdul Hakeem, District Khanewal, Punjab.

The Company has a Power Purchase Agreement ('PPA') with its sole customer, CPPA-G for thirty years which 
commenced from June 06, 2001. 

The Company had a Gas Supply Agreement ('GSA') with Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited ('SNGPL') 
which expired on June 30, 2013. Thereafter, the Company signed a supplemental deed dated March 17, 2014 
with SNGPL, whereby SNGPL agreed to supply gas to the Company on as-and-when available basis till the 
expiry of PPA on June 06, 2031. The Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources ('MoPNR') empowered by 
the Economic Coordination Committee ('ECC') of the Federal Cabinet, issued an allocation of 6 MMCFD of 
RLNG to the Company on April 28, 2017 and advised the Company and SNGPL to negotiate a new GSA. 
Subsequent to the year end, the ECC of Cabinet has approved the summary of an interim tri-partite GSA. 
Currently, the Company, SNGPL and CPPA-G are in the process of execution of an interim GSA for supply of 
RLNG. Under the interim GSA, RLNG will be supplied on as-and-when available basis till the execution of a 
long-term GSA between the parties.

During the year under review, the Company's turnover was Rs. 474 million (2017-18: Rs. 1,621 million) and 
operating costs were Rs. 502 million (2017-18: Rs. 1,558 million), resulting in gross loss of Rs. 28 million as 
against gross profit of Rs. 63 million of last year. The Company reported net profit of Rs. 955 million showing 
earnings per share (EPS) of Rs. 2.63 as compared to corresponding year's net profit of Rs. 1,452 million and 
earnings per share (EPS) of Rs. 4.00. The current year's net profit includes dividend from the subsidiary 
company amounting to Rs. 1,148 million. 

The Company has always strived to smoothly manage its finances and ensure timely payments to all its 
stakeholders, however, the issue of circular debt has been a consistent problem for power sector as well as 
your Company for the last few years. Although, the Federal Government has been striving hard to alleviate the 
circular debt by adding cheaper power in energy mix and injecting subsidies, yet this issue persists. 
Fundamental factors behind increasing circular debt are transmission & distribution losses, expensive fuel 
mix, low recovery by distribution companies and delay in tariff determination by NEPRA. We foresee 
circular debt to remain a challenge. However, with the increasing importance being given to resolution of 
circular debt as a part of IMF program, it is expected that the circular debt will be brought under control, if not 
completely alleviated. Despite the delayed inflows from CPPA-G, the Company has been able to manage the 
cashflows to meet its operational obligations.

GENERAL

FINANCE

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED
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Your Company's consolidated earnings attributable to the equity holders of Altern Energy Limited for the 
year under review were Rs. 1,530 million resulting in EPS of Rs. 4.21 per share, as compared to consolidated 
earnings of Rs. 1,995 million and EPS of Rs. 5.49 in the year ended June 30, 2018.

On March 15, 2019, the Board of Directors declared and subsequently distributed interim cash dividend @ 
31.5% (Rs. 3.15 per ordinary share) to the shareholders of the Company.

Ever since shifting of operations on RLNG from indigenous gas in October 2017, your Company has been 
receiving constant supply of RLNG except for winter months when occasionally RLNG supply was curtailed 
on account of increased domestic demand. However, as a result of influx of significant generation capacity in 
the national grid system during last couple of years, your Company has witnessed significant decline in 
dispatch demand from NPCC. The fundamental reason for low dispatch demand from your Company is that 
most of the added capacity ranks above the Company in Economic Dispatch Merit Order of CPPA-G due to 
better efficiency and cheaper fuel. Due to these factors, the Company dispatched only 22 GWh (2017-18: 145 
GWh) of electric power to the off-taker. 

During the year, all other scheduled and preventive maintenance activities were carried out in accordance 
with the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) recommendations. We are confident that all the engines 
and their auxiliary equipment are in sound mechanical condition for smooth and reliable operations.

Management has reviewed the business performance of the Company's Power Generation operations during 
the year and an assessment has been made in respect of triggering events as specified by IAS 36, 'Impairment 
of Assets' applicable to the assets relating to Power Generation operations at a Cash-Generating Unit ('CGU') 
level. Accordingly, since there is a significant economic impact of the expected cashflows to be generated by 
Altern Plant (the GCU) in future, therefore an impairment has been recorded.  The CGU has been written 
down from its carrying value of Rs 678.84 million to its recoverable amount of Rs 605.67 million. The 
impairment loss has been entirely allocated to property, plant and equipment and has been recognised as a 
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

During the year, your Company's subsidiary Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited ('RPPL') has operated 
smoothly and has posted profit of Rs. 3,102 million (giving earnings per share of Rs. 3.60) as compared to Rs. 
3,596 million (earning per share of Rs. 4.17) earned during the corresponding period of the last year. Profit for 
the year was impacted due to Other Force Majeure Event (OFME) of 85 days due to gas curtailment (37 days 
in 2018).

CPPA-G had raised invoices for liquidated damages ('LDs') to RPPL for the operating year starting from 
December 11, 2012 to December 10, 2013 (after taking into account forced outage allowance stipulated under 
the terms of PPA) on account of short supply of electricity by the company, which was due to cash flow 
constraints of the company as a result of default by CPPA-G in making timely payments. Estimated amount of 
liquidated damages was Rs 1,588 million, based on the best estimate of the management of RPPL and 
invoices raised by CPPA-G.

RPPL disputed the claim on account of LDs on the premise that its failure to dispatch electricity was due to 
CPPA-G's non-payment of dues on timely basis to the company and consequential inability of the company to 
make timely payments to SNGPL. In this regard, RPPL initiated the expert adjudication under the dispute 
resolution procedures specified in the PPA. The case was decided by the expert in the company's favour in 
August 2014.  Decision of the expert is however not legally binding on any party.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

OPERATIONS

SUBSIDIARY'S REVIEW

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

9 ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

In 2017, a Settlement Agreement for resolution of this LDs dispute was agreed by the respective Boards of 
directors of CPPA-G and RPPL. Under the proposed Settlement Agreement, the period of non-performance 
due to unavailability of gas shall be treated as Other Force Majeure Event ('OFME') by CPPA-G under the 
PPA. As a result, the company will not be entitled to any Capacity Payment for this period from CPPA-G and 
CPPA-G will not levy any LDs on the company. By declaration of OFME, the PPA of the company will be 
extended by the OFME period.

Similarly, in January 2017, SNGPL suspended the gas supply for a period of 26 days and as a result CPPA-G 
levied LDs amounting to Rs 858 million. RPPL disputed this amount on the premise that it had already issued 
an OFME notice to CPPA-G in January for a period of 26 days. The same period was also contemplated as 
OFME in the proposed Settlement Agreement. Due to declaration of OFME, the company did not raise 
Capacity Payment invoice for this period.

Subsequent to the year end, the Cabinet Committee on Energy ('CCOE') approved the terms of the Settlement 
Agreement between RPPL and CPPA-G. However, this will require approval of the Federal Cabinet. Once the 
Settlement Agreement is approved, the company will refund the Capacity Payments already received from 
CPPA-G. The event will be treated as OFME and PPA will be extended by a total of 112 days on account of 
2013 and 2017 LDs period.

MoPNR issued an allocation of 85 MMSCFD of RLNG to RPPL on firm basis on September 23, 2015 and 
advised the company and SNGPL to negotiate a long term GSA on firm basis. While negotiations for the long 
term GSA were in process, the ECC approved interim GSA for supply of RLNG to the company upto June 
2018 or signing of a Long-term GSA, whichever is earlier. The interim GSA was executed with CPPA-G and 
SNGPL which was effective from June 1, 2017 and expired on June 30, 2018.

Subsequent to the year end, on July 31, 2019, the ECC of the Federal Cabinet approved the extension of the 
interim GSA of RPPL with SNGPL and CPPA-G. The interim GSA is yet to be signed by the parties. The 
terms of this agreement will be effective upto the date of signings of a long-term Gas Supply and Purchase 
Agreement ('GSPA'). Under the interim GSA, RLNG was supplied on 'as-available' basis, however, the non-
supply of RLNG was treated as 'Other Force Majeure' under the PPA.

During the period under review, the liquidity position of RPPL continues to be adversely impacted due 
circular debt issue of CPPA-G which is pending since long. At the end of the year, out of the total receivable of 
Rs 14,640 million, Rs. 12,782 million were overdue. 

The Company during the year under review has repaid its quarterly debt obligations amounting to Rs. 3,519 
million to the lenders.

The Risk Management principles are geared to identify all the risks to which the Company is exposed and 
your Board adopts all necessary strategies and implements a cautious rationale to mitigate all the risks being 
faced by the Company. The Company recognizes all short term and long term risks so that appropriate 
measures can be adopted to overcome those.

To mitigate the operational risks, the management has developed a very comprehensive system to identify 
operational risks and plans to alleviate those. The Company has carried out necessary maintenance activities 
of the plant to keep it at optimum operable levels. The QEHS function at plant is fully responsible to identify, 
measure and take necessary steps to address and mitigate the probabilities of malfunctioning or any 
unforeseen event.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Operational Risk
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

Financial Risk

FUTURE OUTLOOK

QUALITY, ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH & SAFETY  

The financial risk management is disclosed in Note 32 of the annual audited financial statements of the 
Company.

During the past three years, the power sector in Pakistan has witnessed a major transition phase whereby 
significant influx of electric power is being made in the national grid system. Addition of highly efficient 
RLNG-based and coal-based power plants has contributed to lessen the burden on the consumer, however, 
other crucial challenge for the GoP is to upgrade the existing transmission and distribution system which is 
currently not upto the required standard to handle the additional load. 

As a result of addition of significant generation capacity into the national grid system during the last few 
years, your plant has witnessed serious shortfall in dispatch demand from NPCC since the new plants are 
economical due to better efficiency and rank above Altern's plant in NPCC/CPPA's economic despatch merit 
order.  It is evident from the fact that the plant dispatched 22 GWh during period under review as compared to 
145 GWh dispatched during the preceding financial year. The fact that the Company has a take-and-pay 
contract with CPPA-G, has exposed our Company to a serious challenge to keep the plant operational since 
less dispatch results in less capacity revenue and the Company is finding very difficult to meets its fixed 
operational costs. This situation is further exacerbated by the fact that the Company may not get sustainable 
dispatch from NPCC in the medium and long term as more power is expected to be added in the national 
system. The Board is evaluating the impact of all the developments and shall devise strategies soon to deal 
with all the challenges.

Your Board is exploring many options, including both contractual and commercial, as this complex situation 
has no precedent and has myriad of consequences. The Company during the year has made request to the off-
taker to change the current take-and-pay arrangement into take-or-pay arrangement, so that even if there is 
lack / no dispatch, the Company is able to meet its fixed O & M costs. The management has been assigned by 
the Board to engage both the off-taker and PPIB to jointly prepare a solution to take the Company out of this 
challenging situation where it is striving hard to meet its contractual obligations.

QEHS is the Company's first and foremost priority. During the year under review, your company continued to 
maintain satisfactory level of performance in Quality, Environment, and Health & Safety at the power plant. 
Company has adopted OSHA, NFPA & ISO guidelines to ensure safety of people and equipment deployed at 
plant site. Company has a proactive approach to achieve zero LTI (Lost Time Incident) by monitoring 
Leading/Lagging indicators and plant site got certified by SGS for Integrated Management System, IMS 
(ISO 9001, ISO 14001 & OHSAS 18001) standards. Furthermore, as far as environment protection is 
concerned, the Company is monitoring and complying with Punjab Environmental Quality Standard (PEQs) 
pertaining to air emissions and water effluents.

As of June 30, 2019, the QEHS statistics are as follows:

Hours Since Last LTI  484,766
Days Since Last LTI

 
1,194

Restricted Work Incidents 

                          

0
Medical Treatment

 

1
First Aid Cases

 

0
Near Miss incidents

        

10
Incidents / Property Loss Cases 0
Good Catches 65
QEHS Trainings 34
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's Directors and management are fully acquainted with their responsibilities as required by 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. The Board has adopted best practices of Corporate Governance by 
ensuring a strong sense of business principles and high standards for compliance in conduct of business. The 
same have been summarised in the enclosed Statement of Compliance with listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 duly reviewed by the external auditors.

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board consists of seven (7) Directors and a Chief Executive Officer (deemed director), effectively 
representing the interest of the Shareholders. There is (1) one independent Director, and six (6) non-executive 
Directors, serving on the Board. There is no female director serving on the Board.

Meetings of the Board

The Board is legally required to meet at least once every quarter to monitor the Company's performance 
aimed at effective and timely accountability of its management. The decisions made by the Board during the 
meetings were minuted and were duly circulated to all the Directors with in the timeline as determined by the 
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 for endorsement and were approved 
in the following Board meetings. All meetings of the Board were held in compliance with required quorum 
attendance prescribed by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. The 
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary also attended all the Board meetings.

During the year, seven (07) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance of these meetings is as 
follows:

During the financial year under review, the following changes were made on the Board:
· On August 15, 2018, Mr. Abdul Razak Dawood resigned from his position as Chairman and Director 

of the Company. 

· On September 18, 2018, Mr. Taimur Dawood resigned as Chief Executive of the Company. On 
September 26, 2018, the Board appointed Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim as Chief Executive of the 
Company for the balance un-expired term. 

Changes to the Board

Name of Director Meetings Attended Remarks 

Mr. Abdul Razak Dawood 1/1 Resigned on August 15, 2018 

Mr. Taimur Dawood 7/7  

Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim 7/7  

Mr. Farooq Nazir 7/7  

Mr. Shah Muhammad Chaudhry 6/7 
Leave for absence was granted in 1 
meeting 

Syed Rizwan Ali Shah 4/7 
Leave for absence was granted in 3 
meetings 

Mr. Khalid Salman Khan 2/7 
Leave for absence was granted in 5 
meetings 

Mr. Faisal Dawood 2/5 
Leaves for absence was granted in 3 
meetings 
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

· On September 26, 2018, the Board appointed Mr. Taimur Dawood as Chairman of the Board in place 
of Mr. Abdul Razak Dawood for the balance un-expired term.

· On September 26, 2018, the Board appointed Mr. Faisal Dawood as a Director in place of Mr. Abdul 
Razak Dawood for the balance un-expired term.

· On June 30 2019, Mr. Khalid Salman Khan resigned as a Director of the Company.

Post reporting period, we report the following changes on the Board of Directors of the Company:

· On July 1, 2019, the Board has appointed Mr. Salih Merghani as a director in place of Mr. Khalid 
Salman Khan for the balance un-expired term.

· On July 29, 2019, the Board has appointed Mr. Ijaz Ali Khan as a director in place of Mr. Fazal 
Hussain Asim (who resigned from the board on July 19, 2019) for the balance un-expired term.

· On July 29, 2019, the Board has appointed Mr. Umer Shehzad Sheikh as Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company in place of Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim (who resigned as Chief Executive Officer on July 
19, 2019) for the balance un-expired term.

Mr. Taimur Dawood
Mr. Faisal Dawood
Mr. Farooq Nazir
Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim

During the financial year under review, the following changes were made on the Board:
· On August 15, 2018, Mr. Abdul Razak Dawood resigned from the company as Chief Executive and 

Director. In his place, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Faisal Dawood as a Director and Mr. 
Taimur Dawood the Chief Executive for the balanced un-expired term.

· On November 01, 2018, Syed Ali Nazir Kazmi resigned as Director of the Company. In his place, the 
Board appointed Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim as a Director for the balance un-expired term.

Post reporting period, the following changes have been made on the Board of Directors of the  company:

· On July 29, 2019, the Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Ijaz Ali Khan as a director in place of Mr. 
Fazal Hussain Asim (who resigned from the board on July 19, 2019) for the balance un-expired term.

Mr. Taimur Dawood
Mr. Claus Johann Horst Heckel
Mr. David Shepherd
Mr. Faisal Dawood
Mr. Farooq Nazir
Mr. Salih Merghani
Mr. Shah Muhammad Chaudhry
Mr. Stephan Eric Hans Schaller

During the financial year under review, the following changes were made on the Board:
· On August 15, 2018, Mr. Abdul Razak Dawood resigned from the company as Chairman and 

Director. In his place, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Taimur Dawood as the Chairman of the 
Board of Directors, for the balanced un-expired term.

Subsidiary Companies' Board of Directors

Power Management Company (Private) Limited ('PMCL'):

Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited ('RPPL'):
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

· On September 25, 2018, Mr. Faisal Dawood has been appointed as a Director in place of Mr. Abdul 
Razak Dawood, for the balanced un-expired term.

· On June 30, 2019, Mr. Khalid Salman Khan resigned from the company as a Director. 

Post reporting period, we report the following changes on the Board of Directors of RPPL:

· On July 01, 2019, the Board has appointed Mr. Salih Merghani as a Director in place of Mr. Khalid 
Salman Khan for the balance un-expired term.

The Directors are pleased to report the following:
a. The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its 

state of affairs, the results of its operations, cashflows and changes in equity.
b. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.
c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 

statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
d. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been 

followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure therefrom has been 
adequately disclosed.

e. The Board acknowledges and exercises its responsibility for implementation of adequate 
internal financial controls.

f. There are no significant doubts on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as 

detailed in the listing regulations.
h. The key operating and financial data of last six years is attached to the report.

The Board of Directors confirm its commitment to good corporate governance and ensures appropriate steps 
are taken to comply with best practices. The Company has established and efficient and effective system of 
internal control by implementing appropriate policies and procedures to safeguard the assets of the Company, 
prevent and detect fraud, and ensure compliance with legal and statutory requirements. 

The Company has already met the criteria of training programs for its directors under the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. Therefore, no such training program was conducted 
during the year. 

The remuneration of Board members is empowered by the Board itself. The Board seeks to ensure that there is 
a transparent and fair mechanism in place for determining the remuneration of directors for participation in 
the meetings of the board and its committees. For this purpose, a policy for the determining remuneration of 
directors has been approved and implemented. A Remuneration Committee has been formed to make 
recommendations to the Board on appropriate remuneration levels for directors. This Policy shall be 
reviewed by the Committee every three (3) years (unless an earlier review is required) and the Committee 
shall make recommendations to the Board on suggested amendments.

Directors Statement

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

Directors' Training

Directors' Remuneration
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

Name of Member Meetings Attended Remarks 

Mr. Farooq Nazir 4/4  

Mr. Shah Muhammad Chaudhry 3/4 
Leave for absence was granted in 1 
meeting 

Syed Rizwan Ali Shah 3/4 
Leave for absence was granted in 1 
meeting 

 

Evaluation of Boards' Performance

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

As prescribed under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 
(“Regulations”), the Board has placed an effective mechanism for its own performance evaluation, its 
members and of its committees. This Function was outsourced to Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance 
(in collaboration with Corporate L.I.F.E Centre International Inc.)

To assist the smooth operations of the Board and support in sound decision making, the Board has established 
two committees which are chaired by non-executive directors. These committees are as follows:

The committee supports the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities while primarily reviewing 
financial or non-financial information to the shareholders in compliance with prevailing regulations and 
accounting standards. The audit committee also ensures that sound systems of internal controls are in place to 
safeguard Company's assets. The Terms of Reference of the Committee have been defined in light of the 
guidelines of Code of Corporate Governance.

The committee met 4 times during the year and the attendance was as follows:

· Post reporting period, on July 29, 2019, Mr. Faisal Dawood has been appointed as a member of the 
Audit Committee, for the balance un-expired term.

The Human Resources & Remuneration Committee has been established to review and recommend to the 
Board all elements of compensation and policies and procedures required to be adopted for effective human 
resource function. The Committee comprises of three members.

 The Committee met twice during the year and the attendance of the meeting is as follows:

· Post reporting period, on July 29, 2019, Mr. Ijaz Ali Khan has been appointed as a member of the 
Human Resource & Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim (who resigned 
from the Board on July 19, 2019), for the balance un-expired term.

Name of Member Meetings Attended Remarks 

Mr. Farooq Nazir 2/2  

Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim 1/2 
Leave for absence was granted in 1 
meeting 

Mr. Shah Muhammad Chaudhry 2/2   

 

15 ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

SOCIAL INVESTMENT

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

MATERIAL INFORMATION

AUDITORS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Company continues to focus on Corporate Social Responsibilities. The Company recognizes the 
importance of being a good corporate citizen in conducting its business as well as delivering its obligations in 
social wellbeing of its staff and community in general. 

The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2019 along with disclosures as required under the Code of 
Corporate Governance are included in the Annual Report. No trading in Company's share was carried out by 
the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses including minor children, except of those 
that have been duly reported as per law.

· During the year, the holding company M/s Descon Engineering Limited transferred 211,397,063 
ordinary shares of the Company to M/s DEL Power Limited. This transfer has been made as a result 
of sanctioning of the Scheme of Arrangement under section 284 to 288 of the repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984, by the Lahore High Court through its order dated November 21, 2017. 

· During the year under review, the Board of Directors have engaged a consultant for exploring the 
possibilities of optimising the corporate structure of the Company.

The financial statements of the Company for the current year 2018-19 were audited by M/s A. F. Ferguson & 
Company, Chartered Accounts. The auditors will retire at the end of the Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment. As recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board 
has approved the proposal to appoint M/S A. F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants as auditors of the 
Company for the year ending June 30, 2020, subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the upcoming 
Annual General Meeting. 

The Board of Directors remains grateful to its valuable shareholders, business partners, Government 
functionaries, and all other stakeholders for their cooperation, continued support and patronage. 

The Board also appreciates the contribution made by the executives, staff and workers for efficient operations 
of the Company. 

For and on behalf the Board

Dated: September 30, 2019
Lahore.

Shah Muhammad Chaudhry

Director

Umer Shehzad Sheikh 

Chief Executive
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

Name of company: Altern Energy Limited 
Year ended: June 30, 2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
    1. The total numbers of directors are 6 as per the following:

a) Male 6
b) Female 0

    2. The composition of board is as follows:

Post reporting period, we report the following changes on the board:

· On July 1, 2019, the board has appointed Mr. Salih Merghani as a director in place of Mr. 
Khalid Salman Khan (who resigned from the board on June 30, 2019) for the balance un-
expired term.

· On July 29, 2019, the board has appointed Mr. Ijaz Ali Khan as a director in place of Mr. 
Fazal Hussain Asim (who resigned from the board on July 19, 2019) for the balance un-
expired term.

· On July 29, 2019, the board has appointed Mr. Umer Shehzad Sheikh as Chief Executive 
Officer of the company in place of Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim (who resigned as Chief Executive 
Officer on July 19, 2019) for the balance un-expired term.

    3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed 
companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies, 
where applicable).

    4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

    5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates 
on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

    6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
taken by Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations.

    7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the board for this purpose. The Board has complied with requirements of the Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting of board. 

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors 
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Sr. 
No.  

Category  Names  

1 Independent Director  Syed Rizwan Ali Shah  
2 Non-Executive Directors  Mr. Taimur Dawood  
3 Mr. Farooq Nazir  
4  Mr. Faisal Dawood  
5 Mr. Shah Muhammad Chaudhary  
6 Executive Director  Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim  
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

9. The company has already met the criteria of training programs for its directors under the Regulations. 
Therefore, no such training program was conducted during the year. 

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations. 

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board. 

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was not an independent director during the year.

The HR & Remuneration Committee did not include an independent director as a member during the 
year and the Chairman of the HR & Remuneration Committee was not an independent director 
during the year.

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee:
Four quarterly meetings were held during the financial year ended June 30, 2019.

b) HR & Remuneration Committee:
Two meetings were held during the financial year ended June 30, 2019.

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose of and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of 
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold 
shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement 
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

     For and behalf of the Board of Directors

Lahore
September 30, 2019

Taimur Dawood

Chairman 

 
b) HR & 
Remuneration 
Committee 

1. Mr. Farooq Nazir - Chairman 

2. Mr. Shah Muhammad Chaudhary 

3. Mr. Fazal Hussain Asim 
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a) Audit 
Committee 

1. Mr. Farooq Nazir - Chairman 

2. Mr. Shah Muhammad Chaudhary 

3. Syed Rizwan Ali Shah 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED 
IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Altern Energy 
Limited for the year ended June 30, 2019 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the 
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls 
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance 
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the 
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have 
not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties 
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as 
reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Date: September 30, 2019
  

A.F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Lahore,
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Paragraph Reference Description

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was not an independent director 
during the year.

The Human Resource (HR)& Remuneration Committee did not include 
an independent director as a member during the year and the Chairman 
of the HR & Remuneration Committee was not an independent director 
during the year.

i)

ii)

12

12



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Altern Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matter

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Altern Energy Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of 
the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:
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S. No.  Key audit matter  How the matter was addressed in our 
audit  

 

(i)  Impairment of Power Generation

Cash-Generating Unit ('CGU')

(Refer notes 13.1.4 & 21.1 to the annexed 
unconsolidated  financial statements)

During the current year, the management has 
tested the assets relating to Company's Power 
Generation operations (considered a CGU) for 
impairment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been 
determined based on higher of 'fair value less 
costs of disposal' and 'value in use'. Management 
involved an expert (professional valuer) to 
materially assess the 'fair value less costs of 
disposal' while the 'value in use' has been 
determined by management through discounted 
cash flow method. Based on the above, the 'fair 
value less costs of disposal' has been determined 
as the higher of the two and consequently, has 
been used as the recoverable amount of the CGU. 
This recoverable amount was determined to be 
lower than its carrying amount and the difference 
amounting to Rs 73.17 million has been charged 
as an impairment loss in the statement of profit or 
loss.

The determination of recoverable amount, being 
the higher of 'fair value less costs of disposal' and 
'value in use', requires significant judgement on 
the part of management in both identifying and 
then valuing the relevant CGU. Recoverable 
amount is based on management's view of 
variables such as forecast cash flows, appropriate 
discount rate, market valuation of CGU assets 
and estimated costs of disposal.

Given the level of judgement involved in this 
impairment calculation and the impairment loss 
being a significant event for the Company during 
the year, we consider this to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the 
following:
· Obtained understanding of 

management ' s  process  for  
identification and measurement of 
the CGU;

· Checked the management's 
assessment of presence and 
magn i tude  o f  impa i rmen t  
indicators for Power Generation 
CGU;

· For 'fair value less costs of 
disposal', we reviewed the 
assumptions used by the Company 
in determining the fair market 
value of the assets, including those 
completed by external valuer, 
primarily using our auditor's 
expert and assessed the valuation 
methodology applied;

· For value in use, we evaluated 
cash flow forecasts and the 
process by which they were 
determined and approved,  
i n c l u d i n g  c h e c k i n g  t h e  
mathematical accuracy of the 
underlying calculations;

· Compared the cash flows used 
against the understanding we 
obtained about the business areas 
through our audit and available 
market information;

· Performed independently, a 
s e n s i t i v i t y  a n a l y s i s  i n  
consideration of the potential 
impact of reasonably possible 
upside or downside changes in key 
assumptions; and

· Checked the adequacy of the 
disclosures made by the Company 
in this area with regard to 
applicable accounting and 
reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's 
Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

·
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· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017);

(b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the 
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of 
account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company's business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted 
by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that 
Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Masood.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised share capital

400,000,000 (2018: 400,000,000) 

ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 

363,380,000 (2018: 363,380,000) 

ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Capital reserve : Share premium

Revenue reserve: Un-appropriated profit

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing - unsecured

Deferred liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term financing - unsecured

Trade and other payables

Short term borrowing - secured

Unclaimed dividend

Mark-up accrued

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

 

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.unconsolidated 

Note

4,000,000

 

4,000,000

 

5 3,633,800

                  

3,633,800

                 
6 41,660

                       

41,660

                      
888,811

                     

1,078,636

                 

4,564,271

                  

4,754,096

                 

7 -

                             

-

                            

8 5,107

                         

4,378

                        

5,107

                         

4,378

                        

7 -

                             

79,120

                      

9 107,511

                     

75,140

                      

10 -

                             

159,569

                    

190,673

                     

1,345

                        

11 6,501

                         

15,248

                      

304,685

                     

330,422

                    

12

4,874,063 5,088,896

(Rupees in thousand)

2019 2018
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ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Long term investment

Long term deposit

 

 

 

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares

 

Trade debts - secured, considered good

 

Advances, prepayments and

 

  other receivables

 

Income tax recoverable

 

Bank balances

 

Note

13 565,736

                     

701,204

14 134

                           

418

15 3,204,510

                  

3,204,510

38

                             

38

3,770,418

                  

3,906,170

16 39,800

                       

76,735

17 681,819

                     

934,919

18 131,572

                     

162,155

827

                           

1,527

19 249,627

                     

7,390

1,103,645

                  

1,182,726

4,874,063 5,088,896

(Rupees in thousand)

2019 2018

AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

Revenue - net

Direct costs

Gross (loss)/profit

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Other income

Finance cost

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - basic  

        and diluted (Rupees)

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

Note

20 474,160
 

1,621,194
              

21 (501,829)
 

(1,558,269)
             

(27,669)
 

62,925
                  

22 (48,952)

 

(41,079)

                 

23 (24,636)

 

-

                        

24 1,150,148

 

1,455,685

              
25 (20,167)

                

(25,214)

                 
13.1.4 (73,172)

                

-

                        955,552

               

1,452,317

              26 (730)

                     

325

                       954,822

               

1,452,642

              

34 2.63 4.00

(Rupees in thousand)
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

 

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

                                      
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

954,822
                     

1,452,642
                 

-

                             

-

                            

-

                             

-

                            

-

                             

-

                            
954,822 1,452,642

(Rupees in thousand)
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Capital reserve: Revenue reserve:

Share Share Un-appropriated

capital premium profit Total

Balance as on July 1, 2017 3,633,800
     

41,660
       

1,079,514
      

4,754,974
   

Profit for the year -
                

-
             

1,452,642
      

1,452,642
   Other comprehensive income for the year -

                
-

             
-

                
-

              

Total comprehensive income for the year -

                

-

             

1,452,642

      

1,452,642

   

Interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018

@ Rs 4.00 per ordinary share -

                

-

             

(1,453,520)

    

(1,453,520)

  
Total contributions by and distributions to

owners of the Company recognised directly in equity -

                

-

             

(1,453,520)

    

(1,453,520)

  
Balance as on June 30, 2018 3,633,800

     

41,660

       

1,078,636

      

4,754,096

   

Profit for the year -

                

-

             

954,822

         

954,822

      

Other comprehensive income for the year -

                

-

             

-

                

-

              Total comprehensive income for the year -

                

-

             

954,822

         

954,822

      Interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019

@ Rs 3.15 per ordinary share -

                

-

             

(1,144,647)

    

(1,144,647)

  
Total contributions by and distributions to

owners of the Company recognised directly in equity -

                

-

             

(1,144,647)

    

(1,144,647)

  
Balance as on June 30, 2019 3,633,800

     

41,660

       

888,811

         

4,564,271

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in thousand)
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ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Finance cost paid

Income tax paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure

Dividends received

Profit on bank deposits received

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long term financing - unsecured

Dividends paid

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

                                      
Refer note 7 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

Note

27 242,525
                    

(123,814)
                   

(27,061)
                     

(17,930)
                    

(30)
                            

(294)
                         

215,434
                    

(142,038)
                   

-

                            

(24,573)

                    1,148,087

                 

2,888,628

                 280

                           

2,165

                       
1,148,367

                 

2,866,220

                 

(80,981)

                     

(18,500)

                    
(955,310)

                   

(2,906,421)

                (1,036,291)

                

(2,924,921)

                327,510

                    

(200,739)

                   (157,883)

                   

42,856

                     
28 169,627 (157,883)

(Rupees in thousand)
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Legal Status and Nature of Business

Altern Energy Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated in Pakistan as a listed public company limited by 
shares under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017 and hereinafter referred to as the 
'Act') on January 17, 1995. The Company's ordinary shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The registered office of the Company is situated at Descon Headquarters, 18 km, Ferozepur Road, Lahore and 
the Company's thermal power plant has been set up near Fateh Jang, District Attock, Punjab.

During the previous year, the Scheme of Arrangement of Descon Engineering Limited (the holding company of 
the Company till the effective date of the Scheme of Arrangement) under section 284 to 288 of the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, (hereinafter referred to as the 'Scheme'), was sanctioned by the Lahore High Court 
('LHC') through its order dated November 21, 2017. The Scheme became effective from December 15, 2017 
and resulted in the transfer and vesting of shareholding of Descon Engineering Limited in the Company into 
DEL Power (Private) Limited. Moreover, consequent to the Scheme becoming effective, the ultimate parent of 
the Company is Descon Processing (Private) Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is to build, own, operate and maintain a gas fired power plant having 
gross capacity of 32 Mega Watts (2018: 32 Mega Watts). The Company achieved Commercial Operations Date 
('COD') on June 6, 2001. The Company has a Power Purchase Agreement ('PPA') with its sole customer, Central 
Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited ('CPPA-G') for thirty years which commenced from the COD. 
The Company also holds direct and indirect investments in other companies engaged in power sector as detailed 
in note 15 to these financial statements.

The Company's Gas Supply Agreement ('GSA') with Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited ('SNGPL') expired on 
June 30, 2013. Thereafter, the Company signed a Supplemental Deed dated March 17, 2014 with SNGPL, 
whereby SNGPL agreed to supply gas to the Company on as-and-when available basis till the expiry of PPA on 
June 6, 2031. The Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources, empowered for Re-liquefied Natural Gas 
('RLNG') allocation by the Economic Coordination Committee ('ECC') of the Federal Cabinet, issued an 
allocation of 6 MMCFD of RLNG to the Company on April 28, 2017 and advised the Company and SNGPL to 
negotiate a new GSA.  Subsequent to the year end, the ECC of Cabinet has approved the summary of interim tri-
partite GSA. Currently, the Company, SNGPL and CPPA-G are in the process of execution of an interim GSA 
for supply of RLNG. Under the interim GSA, RLNG will be supplied on as-and-when available basis till the 
execution of a long term GSA between the parties.

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company. Consolidated financial 
statements are prepared separately.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

(I) International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board ('IASB') as notified under the Act; and

(ii)        Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the Act have been followed.

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance
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2.2 Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Company's 
financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods beginning on 
July 1, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in 
these financial statements, except for the following:

This standard was notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ('SECP') to be effective for 
annual periods ending on or after June 30, 2019.  This standard replaces guidance in International Accounting 
Standard ('IAS') 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. It includes requirements on the 
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. It also includes an expected credit losses 
model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. However, in respect of companies holding 
financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan, SECP through SRO 985(I)/2019 dated September 2, 
2019 has notified that the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit 
Losses method shall not be applicable till June 30, 2021 and that such companies shall follow relevant 
requirements of IAS 39 in respect of above referred financial assets during the exemption period. Accordingly, 
the Company has changed its accounting policies and followed the requirements of IFRS 9 for:

- classification and measurement of all financial assets; and
- recognition of loss allowance for financial assets other than the financial assets due from the Government of 
Pakistan.

In respect of application of IFRS 9, the Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as permitted by 
this standard, according to which the Company is not required to restate the prior period results. The adoption of 
IFRS 9 has not resulted in any impact on the opening balance of un-appropriated profit. In respect of 
classification of financial assets, the Company’s management has assessed which business models apply to the 
financial assets held by the Company and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 
categories (i.e. mainly financial assets previously classified as ‘loans and receivables’ have now been classified 
as ‘financial assets at amortised cost’).

This standard was notified by the SECP to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018. 
This standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users 
of the unconsolidated financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash 
flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control 
of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The 
standard replaces IAS 18, ‘Revenue’, and IAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’, and related interpretations.

The Company has applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach for transition. This approach 
requires entities to recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening 
balance of un-appropriated profit in the period of initial application. Comparative prior year periods would not 
be adjusted. The application of IFRS 15 does not have any impact on the revenue recognition policy of the 
Company and therefore, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as an adjustment to the opening 
balance of un-appropriated profit in the period of initial application is nil. Therefore, the comparative 
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the previous accounting policy.

SECP through SRO 24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 has granted exemption from the application of 
International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee ('IFRIC') 4, 'Determining whether an Arrangement 
contains a Lease', and IFRIC 12, 'Service Concession Arrangements', to all companies. However, the SECP 
made it mandatory to disclose the impact of the application of IFRIC 4 or IFRIC 12 on the results of the 
companies.

(a)            IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments’

(b)            IFRS 15, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

2.2.1

2.2.2

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective in the current year

Exemption from applicability of certain interpretations to standards
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Under IFRIC 4, the consideration required to be made by the lessee for the right to use the asset is to be 
accounted for as a finance lease under IAS 17, 'Leases'. The Company's power plant's control due to purchase of 
total output by CPPA-G appears to fall under the scope of IFRIC 4. Consequently, if the Company were to 
follow IFRIC 4 and IAS 17, the effect on the financial statements would be as follows:

There are certain standards, amendments to the IFRS and interpretations that are mandatory for companies 
having accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or to have 
any significant effect on the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements, 
except for the following:

- IFRS 16, ‘Leases’: this standard has been notified by the SECP to be effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2019. This standard replaces the current guidance in IAS 17, ‘Leases’ and is a far reaching 
change in accounting by lessees in particular. Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction 
between a finance lease (on statement of financial position) and an operating lease (off statement of financial 
position). IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a 
‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional exemption for certain 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. For 
lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on the definition 
of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected 
by the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations 
between lessors and lessees.

SECP through SRO 986(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has granted exemption from the requirements of 
IFRS 16 to all companies that have executed their power purchase agreements before January 1, 2019. 
Therefore, the standard will not have any impact on the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

-Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 on the definition of material: (effective for periods beginning on or after July 
1, 2019). These amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements' and IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, 
changes in accounting estimates and errors’, and consequential amendments to other IFRSs: i) use a consistent 
definition of materiality throughout IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; ii) clarify 
the explanation of the definition of material; and iii) incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial 
information. It is unlikely that these amendments will have any significant impact on the Company's 
unconsolidated financial statements.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for 
certain classes of property, plant and equipment which have been measured at 'fair value less costs of disposal'.

2.2.3

3 Basis of measurement

3.1
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De-recognition of trade debts

Decrease in un-appropriated profit at the end of the year

Recognition of lease debtor 

Increase in profit for the year

De-recognition of property, plant and equipment

Decrease in un-appropriated profit at the beginning of the year

2019 2018

             (633,900)            (694,868)

               (58,707)              (83,813)

              457,860              497,852 

             (280,829)            (306,685)

                46,082                25,856 

             (234,747)            (280,829)

(Rupees in thousand)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have 
not been early adopted by the Company
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b) Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by 
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the 
Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the area that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of 
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to the estimates and assumptions turning out to be 
wrong. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in other notes together 
with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the unconsolidated financial 
statements.

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. 
Instances where the Company’s view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the 
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its views on items of material nature is in accordance 
with the law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities. The recognition of deferred taxes is made taking 
into account these judgements and the best estimates of future results of operations of the Company.

The Company reviews the useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and 
equipment on regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the 
respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and 
impairment.

Estimates with respect to impairment of non-financial assets as disclosed in note 4.4 to these unconsolidated 
financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are 
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of 
profit or loss except to the extent that relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

The profits and gains of the Company derived from electric power generation are exempt from tax in terms of 
Clause (132) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the conditions and 
limitations provided therein.

Under clause (11A) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the Company is also 
exempt from levy of minimum tax on 'turnover' under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
However, full provision is made in the statement of profit or loss on income from sources not covered under the 
above clauses at current rates of taxation after taking into account, tax credits and rebates available, if any.

Current

4 Significant accounting policies

4.1
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Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences 
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. However, the deferred tax is not 
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 
combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based 
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date. Deferred 
tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to other 
comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income or equity.

Deferred tax has not been provided in these unconsolidated financial statements as the Company's management 
believes that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future due to the fact that the profits 
and gains of the Company derived from electric power generation are exempt from tax subject to the conditions 
and limitations provided for in terms of clause (132) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. 

Operating fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment 
loss. Freehold land is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that 
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation on all operating fixed assets is charged to income by using the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amounts of an asset over its estimated useful life at the annual rates mentioned in note 13.1 
after taking into account their residual values. Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is 
available for use, while in case of disposal it is charged up to the month of disposal. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on 
depreciation is significant. The Company's estimate of the residual value of its operating fixed assets as at June 
30, 2019, has not required any adjustment as its impact is considered insignificant.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.4).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are included in the statement of 
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred. Exchange differences related to foreign currency 
loans obtained for the acquisition, development and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as referred 
to in note 4.17(b) to these unconsolidated financial statements.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with 
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. 
These are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when these are available for use.
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Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when an entity expects to 
use them for more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when 
such items are available for use.

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software and Enterprise Resource Planning ('ERP') system has been 
capitalised as an intangible asset and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment 
loss. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method at the annual rate mentioned in note 15.

Amortisation on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or 
capitalised while no amortisation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.4).

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested 
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be 
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest 
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows 
from other assets or groups of assets [cash-generating units('CGUs')]. Non-financial assets other than goodwill 
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting 
period.

Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the statement of financial position date or to be 
sold to raise operating capital, are included in current assets, all other investments are classified as non-current. 
Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of the purchase and re-
evaluates such designation on a regular basis.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less any identified impairment loss in the Company's separate 
financial statements. Cost represents the fair value of the consideration given, including any transaction costs 
paid, by the Company at the time of purchase of such equity instruments. In case of an increase in the investment 
in a subsidiary, the accumulated cost represents the carrying value of the investment.

The carrying amount of an investment carried at cost is derecognised when it is sold or otherwise disposed of. 
The difference between the fair value of any consideration received on disposal and the carrying amount of the 
investment is recorded in the statement of profit or loss as a gain or loss on disposal.

An investment's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the investment's 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.4).

The Company is required to issue consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial statements 
in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting standards.

Stores and spares are valued principally at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at 
invoice value plus other charges paid thereon till the statement of financial position date while items considered 
obsolete are carried at nil value.

4.2.3

4.3

4.5

4.4

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment

Intangible assets

Investments

Impairment of non-financial assets
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From July 1, 2018, the Company classifies its financial assets, other than those due from the Government of 
Pakistan, in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value [either through other comprehensive income ('OCI') or through 
profit or loss], and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For 
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has 
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI').

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets 
changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the 
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive 
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
asset not at fair value through profit or loss ('FVPL'), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or 
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their 
cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the 
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the 
Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method, except for delayed payment markup 
on amounts due under the PPA which is included in revenue. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is 
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of 
profit or loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where 
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements 
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest 
income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is 
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or 
loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate 
method. Impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

4.7

4.7.2

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition
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FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on 
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it 
arises.

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management 
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. 
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the 
Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment 
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported 
separately from other changes in fair value.

From July 1, 2018, the Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with 
its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Company has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate comparative information. As a 
result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the Company’s 
previous accounting policy. 

Classification

Until June 30, 2018, the Company classified its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale and held to maturity. The classification depended on the 
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determined the classification of its financial 
assets at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were the financial assets held for trading and financial assets 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives were also categorized as 
held for trading unless they were designated as hedges. A financial asset was classified as held for trading if 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in this category were classified as current 
assets if expected to be settled within twelve months, otherwise, they were classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables were non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They were included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve 
months after the statement of financial position date, which were classified as non-current assets. Loans and 
receivables comprised of trade debts, advances, deposits, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the 
statement of financial position.

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where management has the intention 
and ability to hold till maturity were classified as held to maturity and were stated at amortized cost.

Equity instruments

4.7.4

a)

Impairment of financial assets other than those due from the Government of Pakistan

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Available-for-sale financial assets were non-derivatives that were either designated in this category or not 
classified in any of the other categories. They were included in non-current assets unless management intends to 
dispose of the investments within twelve months from the statement of financial position date.

All financial assets were recognized at the time when the Company became a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments were recognized on trade-date – the date on which 
the Company committed to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets were initially recognized at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at 
fair value through profit or loss were initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs were expensed in the 
statement of profit or loss. Financial assets were derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
assets expired or had been transferred and the Company had transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were 
subsequently carried at fair value. For investments having quoted price in active market, the quoted price 
represented the fair value. In other cases, fair value was measured using appropriate valuation methodology and 
where fair value could not be measured reliably, these were carried at cost. Loans and receivables and held to 
maturity investments were carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' 
category were presented in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arose. Dividend income 
from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss was recognized in the statement of profit or loss as part 
of other income when the Company's right to receive payments was established.

Changes in the fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale were recognized in other comprehensive 
income. When securities classified as available-for-sale were sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value 
adjustments recognized in equity were included in the statement of profit or loss as gains and losses from 
investment securities. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method was 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.  Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments were 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payments was established.

The Company assessed at each reporting date whether there was objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets was impaired. If any such evidence existed for available-for-sale financial assets, the 
cumulative loss was removed from equity and recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss on equity instruments were not reversed through the statement of 
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs 
are expensed on profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Recognition and measurement

4.8

d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial liabilities
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and the Company intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan include trade debts and other receivables due from 
CPPA-G under the PPA that also includes accrued amounts. As referred to in note 2.2.1(a) to these 
unconsolidated financial statements, SECP through SRO 985(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has notified 
that, in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan, the requirements 
contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit Losses method shall not be applicable till 
June 30, 2021 and that such companies shall follow relevant requirements of IAS 39 in respect of above referred 
financial assets during the exemption period. Accordingly, the same continue to be reported as per the following 
accounting policy:

A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able to 
collect all the amount due according to the original terms of the receivable. 

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that the financial 
asset is impaired. The financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a 
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they 
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicates that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that 
correlate with defaults. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been 
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is 
uncollectible, it is written off against the provision. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are 
credited to the statement of profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases 
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as 
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents represent deposits held at call with banks.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
stated at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for 
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings 
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.9

4.10

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan
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4.11

4.12

Cash and cash equivalents

Borrowings

4.13 Borrowing costs
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Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of 
financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits are recognised in respect of employees’ 
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the statement of 
financial position.

The Company provides for accumulating compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective 
entitlement on cessation of service.

The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all employees according to the terms of employment, 
subject to a minimum qualifying period of service and provision is made annually to cover the obligations under 
the scheme. These benefits are calculated with reference to last drawn salaries and prescribed qualifying periods 
of service of the employees.

Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). The 
unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency. All figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise 
stated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss except for exchange differences related to foreign currency loans 
obtained for the acquisition, development and construction of qualifying assets which are capitalised over the 
period of the Implementation Agreement in accordance with SRO 24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 of the 
SECP. 

Revenue shall be recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a 
promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains 
control of that asset and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. 

- Revenue from sale of electricity to CPPA-G, the sole customer of the Company, is recorded based upon the 
output delivered and capacity available based on the rates determined under the mechanism laid down in the 
PPA.

4.14 Trade and other payables

4.15 Provisions

4.16 Employee benefits

Short term obligationsI)

Other long term employee benefit obligations - accumulating compensated absencesii)

Post employment benefit - Defined benefit plan (gratuity)iii)

4.17 Foreign currency transactions and translation

a) Functional and presentation currency

b) Transactions and balances

4.18 Revenue recognition
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4.19

- Other supplemental charges representing delayed payment markup on amounts due under the PPA are accrued 
on a time proportion basis by reference to the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of return under the 
PPA.

Invoices are generally raised on a monthly basis and are due after 30 days from acknowledgement by CPPA-G.

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are declared.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any.

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company; or 

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability.

As at June 30, 2019, 211,397,063 (2018: 211,397,063) ordinary shares of the Company which represent 58.18% 
(2018: 58.18%) of the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Company are held by DEL Power 
(Private) Limited, the Holding Company. Previously, 211,397,063 ordinary shares of the Company which 
represented 58.18% of the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Company were held by Descon 
Engineering Limited till December 15, 2017 as explained in note 1.2.

Ordinary shares of the Company held by related parties (other than the Holding Company) as at year end are as 
follows:
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Dividend

4.20 Share capital

4.21 Contingent liabilities

5. Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

2019 2018

359,480,000 359,480,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid 

    in cash 3,594,800

           

3,594,800

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued for 

3,900,000 3,900,000     consideration other than cash 39,000

                

39,000

363,380,000 363,380,000 3,633,800 3,633,800

2019

(Rupees in thousand)(Number of shares)

2018

5.1

5.2

Directors

Mr Abdul Razak Dawood
Mr Taimur Dawood
Mr Faisal Dawood
Mr Farooq Nazir
Mr Shah Muhammad Chaudhry
Syed Rizwan Ali Shah
Mr Fazal Hussain Asim

Other related party
Descon Holdings (Private) Limited

- note 5.2.1                         -                       500 
                  1,000                  1,000 
                22,500                       -   
                     500                     500 
                     500                     500 
                     500                     500 
                     500                     500 

30,000 30,000 
55,500 33,500 
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Mr Abdul Razak Dawood ceased to be a director of the Company with effect from August 15, 2018.

No other related party holds any shares in the Company.

5.2.1
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5.3

This reserve can be utilised by the Company only for the purposes specified in Section 81 of the Act.6.

7. Long term financing - unsecured

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of loan is as follows:

Opening balance

Mark-up accrued during the year

Repayment during the year

Closing balance

Current portion shown under current liabilities

Long term loan from subsidiary 

    Power Management Company (Private) Limited ('PMCL')

Interest on loan from PMCL

Less: Current portion of long term loan

8. Deferred liabilities

Provision for: 

Staff gratuity

Accumulating compensated absences

8.1 Staff gratuity

Opening liability

Provision for the year

Payments during the year

Closing liability

2019 2018

79,120
                

94,851
             

- note 25.1 1,861
                  

2,769
               

(80,981)
              

(18,500)
           

-

                     

79,120

             -

                     

(79,120)

           -

                     

-

                   

-

                     

31,500

             
-

                     

31,500

             
-

                     

47,620

             

-

                     

79,120

             -

                     

(79,120)

           

-

                     

-

                   

- note 8.1 4,640

                  

3,937

               

- note 8.2 467

                     

441

                  

5,107

                  

4,378

               

3,937

                  

3,015

               

703

                     

922

                  

4,640 3,937

- -

4,640 3,937

(Rupees in thousand)



                  

8.2 Accumulating compensated absences

Opening liability

Provision for the year

Payments during the year

Closing liability

9. Trade and other payables

Natural gas and RLNG charges due to SNGPL

Other creditors

Due to PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) - unsecured

Withholding income tax payable

Withholding sales tax payable

Workers' profit participation fund

Accrued liabilities

Descon Engineering Limited (holding company till December 15, 2017 and

      common directorship thereafter)

Descon Power Solutions (Private) Limited (common directorship)

Descon Corporation (Private) Limited (common directorship)

Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited (subsidiary)

9.2. Short term loan from subsidiary company - unsecured

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of loan is as follows:

Opening balance

Repayment during the year

Receipt during the year

Closing balance

9.1     Includes the following amounts due to the following related parties:

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

                                        

                                 
441

                     

387

                  

26 54

467 441

- -

467

                     

441

                  

1,131

                  

30,825

             

- note 9.1 11,211

                

31,954

             

- note 9.2 80,000

                

5,704

               

6,029

                  

416

                  

275

                     

620

                  

- note 9.3 -

                     

-

                   

8,865

                  

5,621

               

107,511

              

75,140

             
3,653

                  

8,756

               

4,788

                  

13,868

             

382

                     

1,607

               

250

                     

175

                  

9,073

                  

24,406

             
5,704 5,715

(5,704) (11)

80,000 -

80,000 5,704

                                           

                                       

                                        

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousands)
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 This represents amount payable to PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary). This is unsecured and carries mark up at 
six months KIBOR plus 100 basis points per annum. The mark-up rate charged during the year on the 
outstanding balance ranged from 8.04% to 11.84% (2018: 7.15% to 7.21%) per annum. The amount has been 
borrowed to finance working capital needs of the Company.

The maximum aggregate amount payable to PMCL, the subsidiary company, at the end of any month during the 
year was Rs 80.00 million (2018: Rs 5.72 million).

Workers' welfare fund ('WWF') has not been provided for in these unconsolidated financial statements based on 
the advice of the Company's legal consultant. However, in case the Company pays WWF, the same is 
recoverable from CPPA-G as a pass through item under section 14.2(a) of the PPA.

The running finance facility obtained from financial institution under mark-up arrangements amounted to Rs 
300 million (2018: Rs 300 million). The facility carried mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 100 basis points 
per annum, payable quarterly, on the balance outstanding. 

The facility for letter of guarantee amounts Rs 700 million (2018: Rs 700 million). The amount utilised at June 
30, 2019, for the said facility was Rs 532.68 million (2018: Rs 532.68 million).

The facilities are secured against first hypothecation charge of Rs 1,340 million over present and future current 
assets of the Company and cross corporate guarantee issued by Descon Engineering Limited, (holding company 
till December 15, 2017 and related party, on the basis of common directorship, thereafter). The mark-up rate 
charged during the current year on the outstanding balance ranged from 7.50% to 11.99% (2018: 7.15% to 
7.50%) per annum.

In financial year 2014, the taxation authorities issued a show cause notice amounting to Rs 157 million on 
account of input sales tax alleged to be wrongly claimed for the period July 2009 to June 2013. The department 
is of the view that input tax paid by the Company should be split among taxable and non-taxable supplies. The 
Company based on a legal advice, is of the view that component of capacity revenue is not considered value of 
supply and rule of apportionment is not applicable in case of Independent Power Producers ('IPPs') for the 
reason that the ultimate product is electrical energy, which is taxable. The Company submitted reply for the 
show cause notice, which was rejected by the taxation authorities and a demand for the above mentioned 
amount was created. Consequently, Company filed an appeal with Appellate Tribunal Inland revenue ('ATIR') 
against the demand which was also rejected. The Company preferred an appeal before LHC which granted stay 
to the Company after payments of Rs 10.12 million against the total demand of Rs 157 million. The LHC vide its 

9.2.1
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9.2.2

9.3 Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance

Provision for the year 

Payments made during the year

Closing balance

2019 2018

-
                        

9,861

- note 18.2 -                        -

-
                        

9,861

-
                        

(9,861)

- -

(Rupees in thousands)

9.4

10

10.1

10.2

11. Mark-up accrued

Mark-up accrued on:

Amount due to PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) - unsecured

Short term borrowing - secured

2019 2018

6,447
                 

11,126

54

                      

4,122

6,501 15,248

(Rupees in thousands)

12 Contingencies and commitments

12.1 Contingencies

(i)
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judgement in case No. STR 120/2015 dated October 31, 2016 decided the case in favour of the Company and the 
deposit was refunded to the Company. The department has challenged the decision of LHC before Supreme 
Court of Pakistan on February 4, 2017 and has also preferred an intra court appeal against such order which are 
pending adjudication. Since, the case has already been decided in Company's favour on merits by LHC, no 
provision for this amount has been made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

In respect of tax year 2009, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ('ACIR') raised demand of Rs 0.74 
million under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which mainly related to taxation of interest 
on delayed payments, scrap sales and gain on disposal of operating fixed assets. The Company preferred an 
appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) ['CIR(A)'] against the impugned tax demand. The 
CIR(A) decided the appeal in favour of Company thereby deleting the alleged tax demand. The tax department 
has filed an appeal before the ATIR against the order of CIR(A) on August 1, 2016 and the case is now pending 
for adjudication. The Company has not made any provision against the above demand as the case has already 
been decided in Company's favour on merits by CIR(A) and the management is confident that the ultimate 
outcome of the appeal would be in favour of the Company, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax 
consultant and the relevant law and the facts.

In respect of tax years 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the ACIR raised demands aggregating to Rs 9.3 million under 
section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which mainly related to subjecting capacity price 
payments to minimum taxation under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company preferred 
an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) ['CIR(A)'] against the impugned tax demand. The 
CIR(A) decided the appeal in favour of Company thereby deleting the alleged tax demand. The tax department 
has filed an appeal before the ATIR against the order of CIR(A) on November 3, 2016 and the case is now 
pending for adjudication. The Company has not made any provision against the above demand as the case has 
already been decided in Company's favour on merits by CIR(A) and the management is confident that the 
ultimate outcome of the appeal would be in favour of the Company, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax 
consultant and the relevant law and the facts.

The taxation authorities in pursuance of show cause notice under section 182/114 for imposition of penalty for 
late filing of return for tax year 2014, issued order thereby creating demand amounting to Rs 16.84 million. 
Aggrieved with the said order, the Company has preferred an appeal before CIR(A), wherein relief sought was 
not provided. Aggrieved with the order of CIR(A), Company has preferred an appeal before ATIR on May 7, 
2018 and the case is pending adjudication. The Company has not made any provision against the above demand 
as the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of the appeal would be in favour of the Company, inter 
alia on the basis of the advice of the tax consultant and the relevant law and the facts.

In respect of tax year 2015, the Additional Commissioner (Audit), Inland Revenue ['AC(A)IR'] passed an 
amended assessment order under section 122(5A), creating income tax demand amounting to Rs 81.60 million 
which mainly relates to denying the claim of exemption of dividend income from PMCL (wholly owned 
subsidiary) on account of non-filing of group tax return for the said tax year. The Company being aggrieved of 
the said order filed appeal before CIR(A). CIR(A), through order dated April 16, 2018, has accepted all the 
contentions of the Company except the taxation of dividend income thereby reducing the demand to Rs 68.33 
million. On April 18, 2018, the Company has filed an appeal before ATIR against the CIR(A)'s order and has not 
made any provision against the above demand as the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of the 
appeal would be in favour of the Company, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax consultant and the 
relevant law and the facts.

In respect of tax year 2016, the AC(A)IR passed an amended assessment order under section 122(5A), creating 
income tax demand amounting to Rs 150.97 million which mainly relates to taxability of dividend income from 
PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) on accrual basis. The Company being aggrieved of the said order filed the 
appeal before CIR(A). CIR(A), through order dated April 16, 2018, has accepted all the contentions of the 
Company except the taxation of dividend income thereby reducing the demand to Rs 147.52 million. On April 
18, 2018, the Company has filed an appeal before ATIR against the CIR(A)'s order and has not made any 
provision against the above demand as the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of the appeal 
would be in favour of the Company, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax consultant and the relevant law 
and the facts.

53 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited has issued bank guarantee amounting to Rs 532.68 million (2018: Rs 532.68 
million) in favour of SNGPL as a security to cover natural gas / RLNG supply for which payments are made in 
arrears. The guarantee is due to expire on December 14, 2019 and is renewable.
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(vii)

12.2 Commitments - nil

13. Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment

2019 2018

- note 13.1 563,044
              

696,398

- note 13.2 2,692

                  

4,806

565,736 701,204

(Rupees in thousand)
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The cost of fully depreciated assets which are still in use as at June 30, 2019 is Rs 160.30 million (2018: Rs 
155.56 million).

Freehold land represents an area measuring measuring 24 Kanals and 18 Marlas, situated at Tehsil Fateh 
Jang, District Attock.

Management has reviewed the business performance of the Company's Power Generation operations 
during the year and an assessment has been made in respect of triggering events as specified by IAS 36, 
'Impairment of Assets' applicable to the assets relating to Power Generation operations at a CGU level. 
Based on the following indicators applicable to Power Generation CGU, an impairment test has been 
carried out by the management:

- Significant change in the technological and economic conditions;

- Forecast operating losses and net cash outflows for Company’s Power Generation operations.

Power Generation CGU is comprised of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and stores and 
spares. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on higher of ‘fair value less costs of 
disposal’ and ‘value in use’. Management involved an expert (professional valuer) to materially assess the 
'fair value less costs of disposal' while the 'value in use' has been determined by management through 
discounted cash flow method. Based on the above, the ‘fair value less costs of disposal’ has been determined 
as higher of the two and consequently, has been used as the recoverable amount of the CGU. Since there are 
observable indications that the fair value of the CGU has declined significantly, therefore, it has been 
impaired.

The CGU has been written down from its carrying value of Rs 678.84 million to its recoverable amount of 
Rs 605.67 million. The impairment loss has been entirely allocated to property, plant and equipment and has 
been recognised as a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market 
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a 
going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to 
undertake a transaction on adverse terms. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each 
reporting date.

The different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) 
(level 3).

The fair value measurement of Power Generation CGU is categorised within the level 3 of fair value 
hierarchy in its entirety. The Company obtained independent valuation for its freehold land, building on 
freehold land and plant and machinery.

Level 2 fair value of freehold land has been derived using a comparable transactions approach. Sale prices 
of comparable land in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size 
of the property. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per kanal or acre.

Valuation techniques and key assumptions used to determine level 2 and level 3 fair values

13.1.2

13.1.3

13.1.4

13.1.5 Fair value estimation
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Level 3 fair value of building on freehold land has been determined using a depreciated replacement cost 
approach, whereby, current cost of construction of a similar building in a similar location has been adjusted 
using a suitable depreciation rate and forced sale factor to arrive at present market value.

'Level 3 fair value of plant and machinery has been determined using a depreciated replacement cost approach, 
whereby, the assets' purchase costs have been adjusted using suitable inflation, exchange rate fluctuation, 
obsolescence, depreciation and forced sale factors to arrive at present market value,

Costs of disposal of plant and machinery have been determined on the basis of estimate of installation cost of 
similar plant and machinery.

According to the SRO 24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 issued by SECP [as fully explained in note 4.17(b) to 
these financial statements], the Company is allowed to capitalize exchange gains/losses arising on outstanding 
amounts of foreign currency loans contracted under the Implementation Agreement with Government of 
Pakistan until the date of expiry of such Implementation Agreement. There were no exchange losses capitalised 
during the year (2018: Nil). The exchange losses capitalised are amortised over the remaining useful life of 
plant. Had the Company followed IAS 21, 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates', the effect on the 
financial statements would be as follows:

13.1.6

2019 2018

(49,195)
              

(53,294)

4,100
                  

4,100
4,100

                  
4,100

4,806

                  

3,870

-

                     

21,146

4,806

                  

25,016

- note 13.1 -

                     

(20,210)

- note 13.1.4 (2,114)

                

-

2,692

                  

4,806

7,565

                  

7,195

- note 14.3 -

                     

370

7,565

                  

7,565

7,147 5,240

- note 22 284 1,907

7,431 7,147

134 418

Decrease in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment

and un-appropriated profit as at June 30

Decrease in cost of sales

Increase in profit for the year

13.2 Major spare parts and stand-by equipment

The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Transfers during the year

Impairment charge for the year

Closing balance

14. Intangible assets

These represent computer software and ERP system.

Cost

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Closing balance

Amortisation

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value as at June 30

Annual amortization rate 33% 33%

(Rupees in thousand)
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14.1 The amortisation charge for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses.

ERP system has been implemented by Descon Corporation (Private) Limited, a related party (on the basis of 
common directorship), under Service Level Agreement with the Company.

This represents ERP implementation/updating fees charged by Descon Corporation (Private) Limited, a related 
party (on the basis of common directorship).

The cost of fully amortised assets which are still in use as at June 30, 2019 is Rs 7.20 million (2018: Rs 6.41 
million).

The Company directly holds 100% shares in its wholly owned subsidiary, PMCL. PMCL is a private company 
limited by shares incorporated in Pakistan to invest, manage, operate, run, own and build power projects. The 
investment in PMCL is accounted for using cost method in the unconsolidated financial statements of the 
Company. PMCL, in turn, directly holds 58.18% shares in Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited ('RPPL'). RPPL is 
an unlisted public company limited by shares incorporated in Pakistan to generate and supply electricity to 
CPPA-G from its combined cycle thermal power plant having a gross (ISO) capacity of 450 Mega Watts, located 
near Sidhnai Barrage, Abdul Hakim town, District Khanewal, Punjab. 

These represent trade receivables from CPPA-G and are considered good. These are secured by a guarantee 
from the Government of Pakistan under the Implementation Agreement and are in the normal course of business 
and interest free, however, a delayed payment mark-up of reverse repo rate of State Bank of Pakistan plus 2% 
per annum is charged in case the amounts are not paid within due dates. The rate of delayed payment mark-up 
charged during the year on outstanding amounts was 10.00% to 14.75% (2018: 8.25% to 9.00%) per annum. 
These include unbilled receivables aggregating to Rs 82.56 million (2018: Rs 154.73 million).

14.2

14.3

15. Long term investment

Subsidiary - unquoted:

Power Management Company (Private) Limited - (PMCL)

320,451,000 (2018: 320,451,000) fully paid ordinary shares

      of Rs 10 each [Equity held 100% (2018: 100%)] - Cost - note 15.1 

2019 2018

3,204,510

           

3,204,510

        

(Rupees in thousand)

15.1

16. Stores and spares

Stores

Spares

17. Trade debts - secured, considered good

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful debts 

16.1     Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not distinguishable.

2019 2018

                  6,270                66,406 

                33,530                10,329 

                39,800                76,735 

2019 2018

- note 17.1               681,819              934,919 

                12,851                  9,356 

              694,670              944,275 

- note 17.2                (12,851)                (9,356)

              681,819              934,919 

(Rupees in thousand)

(Rupees in thousand)

17.1
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17.2 Provision for doubtful debts

Opening balance

Provision for the year

Closing balance

18. Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Advances - considered good:

    -  To suppliers

    -  To employees against expenses

Balances with statutory authorities:

    -  Sales tax

    -  Receivable against WWF - considered good

Claims recoverable from CPPA-G for pass through items:

-  Workers' profit participation fund

Prepayments

17.3

2019 2018

                  9,356                  8,032 

- note 17.3 & 22                   3,495                  1,324 

                12,851                  9,356 

2019 2018

                     377                  2,899 

                     151                     241 

                94,531              122,969 

- note 18.1                 34,581                34,464 

- note 18.2                         -                         -   

- note 18.3                   1,932                  1,582 

              131,572              162,155 

(Rupees in thousand)

(Rupees in thousand)

During the year, a further provision of Rs 3.49 million has been made on account of disputed amounts 
relating to energy and capacity charges.

This includes WWF contribution amounting to Rs 33.32 million (2018: Rs 33.32 million) based on accounting 
profit for tax year 2014 paid under protest after demand by taxation authorities. Since the provisions of WWF 
were not applicable to the Company in the light of Supreme Court's decision, CPPA-G has not acknowledged 
this amount as a valid pass through item. Therefore, the Company has filed for a refund from the taxation 
authorities. The Company has not made any provision against the recoverable amount as the management is 
confident that the ultimate outcome of the matter would be in favour of the Company, inter alia on the basis of 
the advice of the tax consultant and the relevant law and the facts.

18.1

18.2 Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance

Provision for the year 

Transfer to trade debts during the year

Closing balance

                        

2019 2018

-

                        

9,861

- note 9.3 -

                        

-

-

                        

9,861

-

                        

(9,861)

- -

(Rupees in thousands)
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19. Bank balances

Cash at bank:

On saving accounts 

On current accounts

20. Revenue - net

Energy purchase price - gross

Sales tax

Energy purchase price - net

Capacity purchase price 

Other supplemental charges

21. Direct costs

Salaries, benefits and other allowances

Operation and maintenance

Stores and spares consumed

Write-down stores and spares

Purchase of energy from CPPA-G

Insurance

Lube oil consumed

Repairs and maintenance

Travelling and conveyance

Depreciation on operating fixed assets

Security expense

Generation license fee

Miscellaneous expenses

RLNG consumed

19.1     Profit on balances in saving accounts is 4.14% (2018: 5.25%) per annum.

2019 2018

 - note 19.1                 52,456                     245 

              197,171                  7,145 

              249,627                  7,390 

421,201

              

1,523,297

(61,200)

              

(221,334)

360,001

              

1,301,963

43,894

                

264,741

70,265

                

54,490

474,160

              

1,621,194

              345,140 1,295,004

                     746 816

                35,801 58,090

                  8,209 104,447

- note 21.1                 31,249 -

                  4,170 4,105

                  2,134 2,073

                  1,347 12,994

                  4,119 10,960

                     257 387

- note 13.1.1                 61,252 63,319

                  7,144 5,507

                     157 149

                     104 418

              501,829 1,558,269

(Rupees in thousand)

Under section 14.2(a) of the PPA with CPPA-G, payments to Workers' Profit Participation Fund are recoverable 
from CPPA-G as a pass through item.

This includes prepayment in respect of ERP annual support services cost made to Descon Corporation (Private) 
Limited, a related party (on the basis of common directorship) aggregating to Rs 0.10 million (2018: Rs 0.08 
million).
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21.1

22.1

This represents write-down of stores and spares to net realizable value. The write-down has been recognized as 
part of the overall impairment testing of the Power Generation CGU as referred to in note 13.1.4.

Salaries, benefits and other allowances include Rs 0.70 million (2018: Rs 0.92 million) and Rs 0.03 million 
(2018: Rs 0.05 million) on account of staff gratuity and accumulating compensated absences respectively.

This represents charges in respect of ERP annual support services rendered by Descon Corporation (Private) 
Limited, a related party (on the basis of common directorship).

The charges for professional services (exclusive of sales tax) consist of the following
in respect of auditors' services for:

2019 2018

- note 22.1                 11,268                11,637 

- note 30.2                      500                     500 

- note 22.2                   3,832                  3,141 

                  1,461                  2,339 

                     648                     655 

                     676                     748 

                  1,316                  1,071 

- note 22.3                   1,253                  1,435 

                20,306                12,571 

                  1,619                  1,437 

                     194                     221 

- note 14                      284                  1,907 

- note 13.1.1                  1,353                  1,216 

                     148                         7 

- note 17.2                   3,495                  1,324 

                     362                     529 

                        -                       194 

22. Administrative expenses

Salaries, benefits and other allowances

Directors' meeting fee

ERP running cost

Travelling and conveyance

Utilities

Postage and telephone 

Printing and stationery

Auditors' remuneration

Legal and professional expenses

Fees and subscription

Entertainment

Amortisation on intangible assets

Depreciation on operating fixed assets

Repairs and maintenance 

Provision for doubtful debts

Rent, rates and taxes

Training expenses

Miscellaneous                      237                     147 

48,952 41,079

(Rupees in thousands)

22.2

22.3 Auditors' remuneration

830                     790

280                     266

58                       281

85
                       

98

1,253
                  

1,435

280

                     

2,165

1,148,087

           

1,453,520

1,020

                  

-

761

                     

-

1,150,148 1,455,685

Statutory audit

Half yearly review

Certifications required by various regulations

Reimbursement of expenses

24. Other income

Profit on bank deposits

Dividend income from PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary)

Scrap sales

Liabilities no longer payable written back

23.     This represents trade debts written off during the year being uncollectible.
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- note 25.1 1,861

                  

2,769

3,378

                  

413

10,913

                

10,537

43

                       

7,060

3,708

                  

3,323

- 321

264 791

20,167 25,214

25. Finance cost

Mark-up on:

Long term financing - unsecured

Due to PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) - unsecured

Short term borrowing - secured

Bank charges

Guarantee commission

Late payments surcharge on:

Late payments to Descon Power Solutions (Private) Limited - related

      party (common directorship)

Late payments to SNGPL

25.1 This includes mark-up on loans from Descon Engineering Limited, (holding company till December 15, 2017 
and related party, on the basis of common directorship, thereafter), and PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary), 
amounting to Nil (2018: Nil) and Rs 1.86 million (2018: Rs 2.77 million) respectively.

81
                       

-

649

                     

(325)

730 (325)

955,552

              

1,452,317

277,110

              

435,695

(277,029)

            

(435,046)

- (649)

26. Taxation

Current

For the year

Prior years

26.1     Relationship between tax income and accounting profit

Profit before taxation

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2018: 30%)

Tax effect of:

Amounts that are exempt as referred to in note 4.1

Amounts that are allowable as tax credit

Prior year's tax 649 (325)

730 (325)

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

26.2 The Company along with certain related companies had obtained certificate of registration and designation 
letter of a group from SECP on June 5, 2015 and September 9, 2016, respectively, and the same were registered 
as a group with SECP under Group Companies Registration Regulations, 2008 to avail group relief under 
section 59B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. At the time of registration of group, inter-corporate dividend 
[PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) to the Company] was exempt from tax for companies entitled for group 
relief under Clause 103A of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, 
subsequent to the registration of the group, this clause was amended through Finance Act, 2016 and the 
exemption in respect of inter-corporate dividend was withdrawn. The Company is of the view, that since the 
Company had been registered as a group before the amendment in law, the Company remains entitled for the 
exemption. Based on the advice of the Company's legal advisor, management believes that there are meritorious 
grounds to defend its case in the courts of law with the taxation authorities. Consequently, no provision of Rs 
769.97 million ( 2018:Rs 566.70 million) for tax on dividend income from PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) 
for the tax years from 2016 to 2018 has been recognized in these financial statements.
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2019 2018

              955,552 1,452,317
        

-note 13.1.1                 62,605                64,535 

-note 13.1.4                 73,172                         - 

- note 14                      284                  1,907 

- note 24                     (280)                (2,165)

- note 24           (1,148,087)         (1,453,520)

- note 25                 20,167                25,214 

- note 24                     (761)                         - 

- note 17.2                   3,495                  1,324 

- note 21.1                 31,249                         - 

- note 23                 24,636                         - 

- note 8.1 703

                     

922

                  
- note 8.2                        26                       54 

22,761

                

90,588

             

                  5,377 35,733

             

              224,969 (136,088)

         

                30,582 (15,982)

           

              260,928 (116,337)

         
               (41,164) (98,065)

219,764 (214,402)

242,525 (123,814)

- note 19 249,627

              

7,390

               

- note 10 - (159,569)

27. Cash generated/(used in) from operations

Profit before taxation

Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:

 - Depreciation on operating fixed assets

 - Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

-  Amortisation on intangible assets

 - Profit on bank deposits

 - Dividend income from PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary)

 - Finance cost

 - Liabilities no longer payable written back

-  Provision for doubtful debts

-  Write-down of stores and spares

-  Trade debts written off

 - Provision for staff gratuity

 - Provision for accumulating compensated absences

Profit before working capital changes

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:

Decrease/(increase) in current assets

 - Stores and spares

 - Trade debts - secured, considered good

 - Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in current liabilities

 - Trade and other payables

28. Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances

Short term borrowing - secured

Due to PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) - unsecured - note 9 (80,000) (5,704)

169,627 (157,883)

(Rupees in thousand)

Transactions with related parties29.

The related parties comprise the Holding Company, subsidiaries and associates of Holding Company, group 
companies,  related parties on the basis of common directorship and key management personnel of the 
Company and its Holding Company.  Key management personnel are those persons having authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, 
including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Company. The Company in the normal course of 
business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown 
under receivables and payables. Significant related party transactions have been disclosed in respective notes in 
these unconsolidated financial statements other than the following:
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All transactions with related parties have been carried out on mutually agreed terms and conditions. There are 
no transactions with key management personnel other than under the terms of employment.

This represents remuneration of Chief Executive, a non-executive Director and an executive that is included in 
the remuneration disclosed in note 30.1 to these financial statements.

 All the related parties with whom the company had entered into transactions or had arrangements/agreements 
in place during the year have been disclosed in relevant notes to these unconsolidated financial statements.

29.1

Nature of transactions 2019 2018

i.  Holding company

Descon Engineering Limited - till
     December 15, 2017 Dividends paid                         -             1,691,177 

Common costs charged 
to the Company

                  2,455                  1,104 

DEL Power (Private) Limited Dividends paid               615,958                       -   

ii.  Subsidiaries

PMCL (wholly owned) Dividends received 1,228,087

           

2,888,962

RPPL Common costs charged 
to the Company

340

                     

300

iii.  Other related parties

On the basis of common directorship

Descon Engineering Limited - from
     December 15, 2017 Common costs charged to the Company                        -                    2,037 

Descon Power Solutions (Private)
      Limited Operation and maintenance contractor's

     fee 35,801 52,809 
Service agreement of generators  - 5,281 
Purchases of spare parts 2,905 70,399 
Major maintenance fee  - 1,746 
Common costs charged to the Company 451                       78 

Descon Corporation (Private)
     Limited Common costs charged to the Company 362

                     

529

Group company

Descon Holdings (Private) Limited Dividends paid 95 240

iv.  Key management personnel Short term employee benefits  - note 29.2 7,816 7,777
Post employment benefits  - note 29.2 578 773
Long term benefits  - note 29.2 18 37
Other benefits  - note 29.2 665 724
Dividends paid 70 208

(Rupees in thousand)
Relationship with the Company

29.2

29.3
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30. Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

Managerial remuneration

Number of person(s)

Managerial remuneration

Accumulating compensated absences

Gratuity

House rent, utilities and other allowances

Bonus

Reimbursable expenses against vehicle

Other services rendered

Number of person(s)

31. Number of employees

Total number of employees as at June 30

Average number of  employees during the year

32. Financial risk management

32.1 Financial risk factors

30.2

30.1

Chief Executive Executive Director

2019 2018 2019 2018

3,489

                   

3,156

           

-

                     

-

1 1 -

                     

-

Non Executive Directors Executives

2019 2018 2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

-

                       

-

              

3,469

                  

3,273

-

                       

-

              

18

                       

37

-

                       

-

              

578

                     

773

-

                       

-

              

347

                     

327

-

                       

-

              

510

                     

510

-

                       

-

              

511

                     

511

665

                      

724

              

-

                     

-

665

                      

724

              

5,433

                  

5,431

6 6 1 1

2019 2018

7 7 

7 7 

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

The aggregate amounts charged in these unconsolidated financial statements for remuneration and certain 
benefits to Directors, Chief Executive and Executive of the Company are as follows:

During the year the Company paid meeting fee amounting to Rs 0.50 million (2018: Rs 0.50 million) to its non-
executive (independent) director.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other 
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects 
on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the 'Board'). The Board provides principles for 
overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate 
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. All treasury related transactions are carried out within the 
parameters of these policies.
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Market risk

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or 
receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is not exposed to any significant currency risk. 

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 

The Company has no significant long term interest-bearing assets. The Company's interest rate risk arises from 
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

At the statement of financial position date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial 
instruments was:

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the statement of financial position date would not affect profit or loss 
of the Company.

(a)

(i)

(ii)

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances - saving accounts

Financial liabilities

Net exposure

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets

Trade debts - secured, considered good, overdue

Financial liabilities

Long term financing - unsecured

Short term borrowing - secured

Due to PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) - unsecured

Net exposure

2019 2018

- note 19                 52,456                     245 

                        -                         -   

                52,456                     245 

              634,088              806,496 

                        -                (31,500)

- note 10                         -              (159,569)

- note 9                (80,000)                (5,704)

               (80,000)            (196,773)

              554,088              609,723 

(Rupees in thousand)

66ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Other price risk

Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

If interest rates on variable rate financial instruments, at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher/lower with 
all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been Rs 5.56 million (2018: Rs 6.12 
million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of  higher/lower net interest income on floating rate instruments.

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether 
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors 
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk 
since there are no investments in equity instruments traded in the market at the reporting date. The Company is 
also not exposed to commodity price risk since it does not hold any financial instrument based on commodity 
prices. 

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other 
party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk mainly arises from deposits with banks, trade and other 
receivables. 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

The Company's sole customer is CPPA-G. The credit risk on trade debts from CPPA-G is managed by a 
guarantee from the Government of Pakistan under the Implementation Agreement and by continuous follow-
ups for release of payments from CPPA-G. Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external 
credit enhancements. The Company establishes a provision for doubtful debts that represents its estimate of 
incurred losses in respect of trade debts, if required.

(iii)

(d)

(I)

Long term deposit

Trade debts - secured, considered good

Bank balances

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due 0-30 days

Past due 31-120 days

Past due more than 120 days

Provision for doubtful debts

As of June 30, age analysis of trade debts was as follows: 

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

                       38                       38 

- note 17               681,819              934,919 

- note 19               249,627                  7,390 

              931,484              942,347 

47,731

               

128,423

7,057

                 

298,277

                        -                117,408 

              639,882              400,167 

               (12,851)                (9,356)

681,819 934,919
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The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about external counterparty default rate:

(ii) Credit quality of major financial assets

Rating 2019 2018

Short term Long term Agency

681,819

             

934,919

A1+ AAA PACRA                   1,912 1,900

A1+ AA PACRA                   4,293 4,302

A1+ AAA JCR-VIS               186,210 64

CPPA-G

MCB Bank Limited

The Bank of Punjab

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan 

 Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA                 57,212 1,124

              931,446              942,309 

Not available

(Rupees in thousands)

Rating

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due 
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter 
parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that, as far as possible, it always has sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable loss or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

Liquidity riskc)

Carrying One to five More than

amount  year five years

101,207 101,207
       

                        -                         -   

6,501 6,501
           

                        -                         -   

190,673

               
190,673

       
                        -                         -   

                298,381        298,381                         -                         -   

Carrying Less than One to five More than
amount  one year  year five years

79,120          79,120                         -                         -   

74,104          74,104                         -                         -   

159,569        159,569                         -                         -   

15,248          15,248                         -                         -   

1,345            1,345                         -                         -   

                329,386        329,386                         -                         -   

Less than 
one year

--------------------------------(Rupees in thousand)--------------------------------

2019

Maturities

Maturities

--------------------------------(Rupees in thousand)-------------------------------

2018

Trade and other payables

Mark-up accrued

Unclaimed dividend

Long term financing - unsecured

Trade and other payables

Short term borrowing - secured

Mark-up accrued

Unclaimed dividend

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
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32. Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard Company's ability to continue as a going concern 
in order to provide returns for shareholders and lenders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost 
of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid 
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders through repurchase of shares, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce 
debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital 
structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by total capital employed. 
Net borrowings are calculated as total borrowings including current and non-current borrowings less cash and cash 
equivalents. Total capital employed includes equity as shown in the unconsolidated statement of financial position, 
plus net borrowings. 

The Company is not exposed to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

2019 2018

-                      31,500

-
                     

157,883

-

                     

189,383

4,564,271

           

4,754,096

4,564,271

           

4,785,596

Borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents

Net borrowings

Total equity

Total capital employed

Gearing ratio 0.00% 3.96%

(Rupees in thousand)

32.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these unconsolidated financial statements 
approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting 
date.

There are no significant financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable 
master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

32.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

32.5 Financial instruments by categories
 Financial assets 

at amortised 
cost 

 Loans and 
receivables 

2019 2018

Assets as per statement of financial position

Long term deposit 38

                       

38

Trade debts - secured, considered good 681,819

              

934,919

Bank balances 249,627

              

7,390

931,484 942,347

(Rupees in thousand)
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2019 2018

Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term financing - unsecured -

                     

79,120

Trade and other payables 101,207

              

74,104

Short term borrowing - secured -

                     

159,569

Mark-up accrued 6,501

                  

15,248

Unclaimed dividend 190,673

              

1,345

298,381

              

329,386

33. Plant capacity and actual generation

Installed capacity (MWh) 250,356 250,356

Practical maximum output (MWh) 219,318 219,318

Actual energy delivered (MWh) 22,029 145,115

(Rupees in thousand)

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

The actual generation for power plant takes into account all scheduled outages approved by CPPA-G. Actual output 
is dependent on the load demanded by CPPA-G, RLNG supply by SNGPL under as-and-when available basis, the 
plant availability and mean-site conditions.

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand) 954,822

             

1,452,642

(Number) 363,380,000 363,380,000

(Rupees) 2.63 4.00

34. Earnings per share - basic and diluted

34.1 Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments 
in issue as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option 
to convert is exercised.

The Company has entered into an Implementation Agreement dated July 19, 1995 with the President of the 
Islamic Republic of Pakistan, for and on behalf of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan under which the 
Government of Pakistan has allowed certain concessions to the Company for installation of a 14 Mega Watts 
Power Plant. As a result of amendment to the Implementation Agreement dated September 09, 2005, the 
capacity of the plant was enhanced to 32 Mega Watts.

 The Company has entered into PPA dated September 18, 1995 with WAPDA which was later amended on April 
22, 2006 to incorporate various revised provisions, mutually agreed between the parties. The PPA has now been 
novated by WAPDA in favour of CPPA-G, whereby CPPA-G will purchase the electricity produced by the 
Company for a term of 30 years till June 2031. 

The PPA provides the tariff structure which comprises invoicing as follows:

34.2 Diluted earnings per share

35. Significant contracts

35.1

35.2.1

35.2
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- Energy Purchase Price which is the price of energy sold to CPPA-G, Energy Purchase Price consists of fuel 
and variable operational & maintenance costs.

- Capacity Purchase Price which is the price for making available the required level of capacity to generate 
energy available during the period. Capacity Purchase Price consists of two components namely Escalable 
Component ('EC') and non-Escalable component ('NEC'). EC includes fixed operations and maintenance cost, 
insurance cost, administrative costs and return on equity etc. NEC comprises of payment of loans (i.e. 
principal, interest and foreign exchange differences). The foreign exchange differences are recovered in the 
form of indexations in-built in the EC & NEC components.

The Company entered into a GSA dated August 03, 2007 with SNGPL whereby SNGPL committed to supply 
natural gas to the Company on 9 months take-or-pay basis till June 30, 2013. The Company's GSA with 
SNGPL expired on June 30, 2013. Thereafter, the Company signed a Supplemental Deed dated March 17, 
2014 with SNGPL, whereby SNGPL agreed to supply gas to the Company on as-and-when available basis till 
the expiry of PPA on June 6, 2031. The Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources, empowered for RLNG 
allocation by the ECC of the Federal Cabinet, issued an allocation of 6 MMCFD of RLNG to the Company on 
April 28, 2017 and advised the Company and SNGPL to negotiate a new GSA. Subsequent to the year end, the 
ECC of cabinet has approved the summary for interim tri-partite GSA between the Company, SNGPL and 
CPPA-G. Currently, the Company, SNGPL and CPPA-G are in the process of execution of an interim GSA for 
supply of RLNG. Under the interim GSA, RLNG will be supplied on as-and-when-available basis till the 
execution of a long term GSA between the parties.

The Company entered into an Operation & Maintenance and Service Agreement dated July 1, 2008 with 
Descon Power Solutions (Private) Limited, a related party (on the basis of common directorship), which has 
been amended from time to time till June 30, 2019. The agreement engages the contractor to perform all the 
activities related to operations, maintenance, and other services of the plant till the expiry of the term.

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on September 30, 2019  by the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect better presentation of events and 
transactions for the purpose of comparison, however, no significant reclassifications have been made.

The Board of Directors have proposed a final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019 of Rs 3/- per share 
(2018: Nil), amounting to Rs 1,090,140,000/- (2018: Nil) at their meeting held on September 30, 2019 for 
approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 25, 2019.

35.3

36. Date of authorisation for issue

37. Corresponding figures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Altern Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Altern Energy Limited and its subsidiaries 
(the Group),which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at June 30, 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We draw attention to note 14.1(viii) to the annexed consolidated financial statements, which describes the 
uncertainty regarding the outcome of certain claims by Central Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) 
Limited ['CPPA(G)'], which have been disputed by the Group. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:

Basis for Opinion

Emphasis of Matter

Key Audit Matter
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S. No. Key audit matter  How the matter was addressed in our 
audit  
 

(i)  
 

Impairment of Altern Energy Limited's 
('AEL's') Power Generation Cash-Generating 
Unit ('CGU')

(Refer notes 15.1.4 & 23.2 to the annexed 
consolidated financial statements)

During the current year, the management has tested 
the assets relating to AEL's Power Generation 
operations (considered a CGU) for impairment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been 
determined based on higher of 'fair value less costs 
of disposal' and 'value in use'. Management 
involved an expert (professional valuer) to 
materially assess the 'fair value less costs of 
disposal' while the 'value in use' has been 
determined by management through discounted 
cash flow method. Based on the above, the 'fair 
value less costs of disposal' has been determined as 
the higher of the two and consequently, has been 
used as the recoverable amount of the CGU. This 
recoverable amount was determined to be lower 
than its carrying amount and the difference 
amounting to Rs 73.17 million has been charged as 
an impairment loss in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss.

The determination of recoverable amount, being 
the higher of 'fair value less costs of disposal' and 
'value in use', requires significant judgement on the 
part of management in both identifying and then 
valuing the relevant CGU. Recoverable amount is 
based on management's view of variables such as 
forecast cash flows, appropriate discount rate, 
market valuation of CGU assets and estimated costs 
of disposal.

Given the level of judgement involved in this 
impairment calculation and the impairment loss 
being a significant event for the Group during the 
year, we consider this to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the 
following:

· Obta ined  unders tanding  of   
m a n a g e m e n t ' s  p r o c e s s  f o r  
identification and measurement of 
the CGU;

· Checked the  management ' s  
assessment of presence and 
magnitude of impairment indicators 
for AEL's Power Generation CGU;

· For 'fair value less costs of disposal', 
we reviewed the assumptions used 
by the Group in determining the fair 
market value of the assets, including 
those completed by external valuer, 
primarily using our auditor's expert 
and assessed the valuation 
methodology applied;

· For value in use, we evaluated cash 
flow forecasts and the process by 
which they were determined and 
approved, including checking the 
mathematical accuracy of the 
underlying calculations;

· Compared the cash flows used 
against the understanding we 
obtained about the business areas 
through our audit and available 
market information;

· Performed independently,  a 
sensitivity analysis in consideration 
of  the potential  impact  of  
reasonably possible upside or 
d o w n s i d e  c h a n g e s  i n  k e y  
assumptions; and

· Checked the adequacy of the 
disclosures made by the Group in 
this area with regard to applicable 
accounting and reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's 
Reports Thereon

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements 
and our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the Companies Act, 
2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group's internal control. 
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· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

· Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Masood.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised share capital

400,000,000 (2018: 400,000,000) 

ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 

363,380,000 (2018: 363,380,000) 

ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Capital reserve: Share premium

Revenue reserve: Un-appropriated profit

Attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interest

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing - secured

Deferred liabilities

Deferred taxation

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term financing - secured

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings - secured 

Mark-up accrued

Derivative financial instrument

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

Note

4,000,000

 

4,000,000

 

5 3,633,800

                  

3,633,800

                 
6 41,660

                       

41,660

                      
13,306,785

                

12,920,994

               
16,982,245

                

16,596,454

               11,026,973

                

10,613,034

               

28,009,218

                

27,209,488

               
7 -

                            

1,561,704

                 

8 23,292

                      

24,606

                      

9 1,005,062

                 

958,542

1,028,354

                 

2,544,852

                 7 2,112,666

                 

3,123,407

                 

10 3,035,852

                 

1,680,570

                 

190,673

                    

1,345

                        

11 2,927,075

                  

1,816,641

                 

12 97,591

                       

47,491

                      

13 7,842

                         

45,232

                      

8,371,699

                  

6,714,686

                 

14

37,409,271 36,469,026

(Rupees in thousand)

Chief Executive DirectorChief Financial Officer
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ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Long term deposits

Long term loans to employees - secured

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools

Inventory of fuel oil

Income tax recoverable

Trade debts - secured, considered good

Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Bank balances

2019 2018

Note

15 17,843,296
                

19,131,670

16 134

                            

418

739

                            

369

17 1,417

                         

5,161

17,845,586

                

19,137,618

18 661,678

                     

621,053

464,510

                     

468,560

224,813

                     

221,361

19 15,321,768

                

13,751,910

20 688,305

                     

710,438

21 2,202,611

                  

1,558,086

19,563,685

                

17,331,408

37,409,271 36,469,026

(Rupees in thousand)

Chief Executive DirectorChief Financial Officer
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Revenue - net

Direct costs

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Other income

Finance cost

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders

of the Parent Company during the year - basic

and diluted (Rupees)

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

Note

22 19,946,781
           

31,443,772

23 (15,721,983)

        

(26,785,009)

4,224,798

             

4,658,763

24 (225,354)

              

(242,678)

25 (24,636)

                

-

26 151,609

                

221,855

27 (1,111,430)

           

(1,039,514)

15.1.4 (73,172)

                

-

2,941,815

             

3,598,426

28 (170,878)

              

(164,425)

2,770,937

             

3,434,001

1,529,573

             

1,994,984

1,241,364

             

1,439,017

2,770,937 3,434,001

35 4.21 5.49

(Rupees in thousand)

Chief Executive DirectorChief Financial Officer
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Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/ (loss):

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of post retirement benefits obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interest

          

          
The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

Note

2,770,937
          

3,434,001

-

                     

-

8.3.7 1,442

                 

(104)

1,442

                 

(104)

2,772,379

          

3,433,897

1,530,438

          

1,994,922

1,241,941 1,438,975

2,772,379 3,433,897

(Rupees in thousand)

Chief Executive DirectorChief Financial Officer
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Income tax paid

Retirement benefits paid

Long term deposits - net

Long term loans to employees - net 

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets

Profit on bank deposits received

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long term financing - secured

Dividends paid to:

- Non-controlling interest

- Equity holders of the Parent Company

Settlement of derivative financial instrument

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

                            

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

                              

Refer note 29.3 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

Note

29.1 5,502,723
             

3,722,837
             (545,149)

               
(518,602)

               (127,810)

               

(300,092)

               (8,161)

                   

(7,189)

                   (370)

                     

170

5,025

                    

3,255

                    
4,826,258

             

2,900,379

             

(47,865)

                

(51,863)

527

                       

10,985

                  

104,480

                

96,941

                  57,142

                 

56,063

(3,519,296)

            

(2,876,223)

            

(828,002)

               

(2,070,007)

            

(955,310)

              

(2,906,421)

(46,701)

                 

(106,233)

               

(5,349,309)

            

(7,958,884)

            

(465,909)

              

(5,002,442)

(258,555) 4,743,887

29.2 (724,464) (258,555)

(Rupees in thousand)

Chief Executive DirectorChief Financial Officer
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 Capital 

reserve: 
Revenue reserve:

Share Share Un-appropriated Non-controlling Total

capital Premium profit interest equity

Balance as on July 1, 2017 3,633,800
    

41,660
         

12,379,592
    

16,055,052 10,209,062 26,264,114

Profit for the year -

                  

-

                  

1,994,984

      

1,994,984 1,439,017 3,434,001

Other comprehensive loss for the year -

                  

-

                  

(62)

                

(62) (42) (104)

Total comprehensive income for the year -

                  

-

                  

1,994,922

      

1,994,922 1,438,975 3,433,897

@ Rs 4.00 per ordinary share -

              

-

              

(1,453,520)

    

(1,453,520) - (1,453,520)

-

              

-

              

-

                 

- (1,035,003) (1,035,003)

Total transactions with owners in their 

capacity as owners -

                  

-

                  

(1,453,520)

    

(1,453,520) (1,035,003) (2,488,523)

Balance as on June 30, 2017 3,633,800

    

41,660

         

12,920,994

    

16,596,454 10,613,034 27,209,488

Profit for the year -

              

-

              

1,529,573

      

1,529,573 1,241,364 2,770,937

Other comprehensive income for the year -

              

-

              

865

                

865 577 1,442

Total comprehensive income for the year -

              

-

              

1,530,438

      

1,530,438 1,241,941 2,772,379

@ Rs 3.15 per ordinary share -

              

-

              

(1,144,647)

    

(1,144,647) - (1,144,647)

-

              

-

              

-

                 

- (828,002) (828,002)

Total transactions with owners in their 

capacity as owners -

              

-

              

(1,144,647)

    

(1,144,647) (828,002) (1,972,649)

Balance as on June 30, 2019 3,633,800 41,660 13,306,785 16,982,245 11,026,973 28,009,218

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018

Dividend relating to 2018 for non-controlling interest

Interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019

Dividend relating to 2019 for non-controlling interest

-------------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand)---------------------------------------------

 Total equity 

attributable 

to equity 

holders of the 

Parent 

Company 

Chief Executive DirectorChief Financial Officer
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STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

1. Legal status and nature of business

Altern Energy Limited (the 'Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries, Power Management Company (Private) 
Limited ('PMCL') and Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited ('RPPL'), (together, the 'Group’) are engaged in power 
generation activities.

The registered office of the Group is situated at Descon Headquarters, 18 km, Ferozepur Road, Lahore.

The Parent Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a listed public company limited by shares under the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017 and hereinafter referred to as the 'Act') on January 
17, 1995. The Parent Company's ordinary shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The 
registered office of the Parent Company is situated at Descon Headquarters, 18 km, Ferozepur Road, Lahore 
and the Parent Company's thermal power plant has been set up near Fateh Jang, District Attock, Punjab.

During the previous year, the Scheme of Arrangement of Descon Engineering Limited (the holding company of 
the  Parent Company till the effective date of the Scheme of Arrangement) under section 284 to 288 of the 
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, (hereinafter referred to as the 'Scheme'), was sanctioned by the Lahore 
High Court ('LHC') through its order dated November 21, 2017. The Scheme became effective from December 
15, 2017 and resulted in the transfer and vesting of shareholding of Descon Engineering Limited in the Parent 
Company into DEL Power (Private) Limited. Moreover, consequent to the Scheme becoming effective, the 
ultimate parent of the Parent Company is Descon Processing (Private) Limited.

The principal activity of the Parent Company is to build, own, operate and maintain a gas fired power plant 
having gross capacity of 32 Mega Watts. The Parent Company achieved Commercial Operations Date ('COD') 
on June 6, 2001. The Parent Company has a Power Purchase Agreement ('PPA') with its sole customer, Central 
Power Purchasing Agency (Guarantee) Limited ('CPPA-G') for thirty years which commenced from the COD. 

The Parent Company's Gas Supply Agreement ('GSA') with Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited ('SNGPL') 
expired on June 30, 2013. Thereafter, the Parent Company signed a Supplemental Deed dated March 17, 2014 
with SNGPL, whereby SNGPL agreed to supply gas to the Parent Company on as-and-when available basis till 
the expiry of PPA on June 6, 2031. The Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources, empowered for Re-
liquefied Natural Gas ('RLNG') allocation by the Economic Coordination Committee ('ECC') of the Federal 
Cabinet, issued an allocation of 6 MMCFD of RLNG to the Parent Company on April 28, 2017 and advised the 
Parent Company and SNGPL to negotiate a new GSA.  Subsequent to the year end, the ECC of Cabinet has 
approved the summary of interim tri-partite GSA. Currently, the Parent Company, SNGPL and CPPA-G are in 
the process of execution of an interim GSA for supply of RLNG. Under the interim GSA, RLNG will be 
supplied on as-and-when available basis till the execution of a long term GSA between the parties.

The Group is structured as follows:

-     Altern Energy Limited, the Parent Company

Subsidiary companies:

 -    PMCL

 -    RPPL

- note 1.1

2019 2018

- note 1.2 100% 100%

- note 1.3 59.98% 59.98%

(Effective Holding Percentage)

1.1

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.1.4

Altern Energy Limited, the Parent Company
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PMCL

RPPL

PMCL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private company limited by shares under the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 (now the Act) on February 24, 2006. PMCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company. The 
principal objective of PMCL is to invest, manage, operate, run, own and build power projects. PMCL directly 
holds 59.98% shares in RPPL, a company engaged in power generation as detailed in note 1.3 to these 
consolidated financial statements. The registered office of PMCL is situated at Descon Headquarters, 18 km 
Ferozepur Road, Lahore.

RPPL was incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted public company limited by shares under the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Act) on August 4, 1994. RPPL's registered office is situated at 2nd Floor 
Emirates Tower, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad and the its thermal power plant has been set up near Sidhnai Barrage, 
Abdul Hakim Town, District Khanewal, Punjab.

The principal activities of RPPL are to generate and supply electricity to CPPA-G from its combined cycle 
thermal power plant having a gross (ISO) capacity of 450 Mega Watts. RPPL achieved COD on December 11, 
1999. RPPL has a PPA with its sole customer, CPPA for thirty years which commenced from the COD. 

RPPL's plant was initially designed to operate with residual furnace oil and was converted to gas fired facility in 
2003 after allocation of 85 MMSCFD by the Government of Pakistan for a period of twelve years under GSA 
with SNGPL till August 18, 2015. At that time, under the amended and restated Implementation Agreement, the 
Government of Pakistan provided an assurance that RPPL will be provided gas post August 2015, in preference 
to the new projects commissioned after RPPL.

The Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources ('MOPNR'), empowered for RLNG allocation by the 
Economic Co-ordination Committee ('ECC'), issued an allocation of 85 MMSCFD of RLNG to RPPL on firm 
basis on September 23, 2015 and advised RPPL and SNGPL to negotiate a long term GSA on firm basis. While 
negotiations for the long term GSA are in process, the ECC approved interim GSA for supply of RLNG to RPPL 
upto June 2018 or signing of a Long-term GSA, whichever is earlier. The interim GSA was executed with 
CPPA-G and SNGPL which was effective from June 1, 2017. Under the interim GSA, RLNG was supplied on 
'as-available' basis, however, the non-supply of RLNG was treated as 'Other Force Majeure' under the PPA. The 
interim GSA expired in June 2018.

Subsequent to the year end, on July 31, 2019, the ECC of the Federal Cabinet approved the extension of the 
interim GSA of RPPL with SNGPL and CPPA-G. The interim GSA is yet to be signed by the parties. The terms 
of this agreement will be effective upto the date of signing of a long term Gas Supply and Purchase Agreement 
('GSPA').

In terms of Amendment No. 3 to the PPA executed between RPPL and CPPA-G on August 21, 2003, RPPL 
agreed to transfer ownership of the Complex to CPPA-G at a token value of US$ 1 at the expiry of 30 years term 
of PPA (starting from December 11, 1999), if CPPA-G does not opt for a renewal of the PPA for the additional 
term pursuant to section 4.1 (c) of the PPA. The PPA has been extended by a period of 122 days as of June 30, 
2019, owing to non-supply of RLNG under interim GSA. The term of PPA will end in May 2030 and the 
remaining life of the project is 10.83 years.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
('IASB') as notified under the Act; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

1.2

1.3

Basis of preparation

2.1

(i)

Statement of compliance

2.

1.3.1

1.3.2

1.3.3

1.3.4
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Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the Act have been followed.

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Group's 
consolidated financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods beginning on 
July 1, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group's operations 
(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in 
these financial statements, except for the following:

This standard was notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ('SECP') to be effective for 
annual periods ending on or after June 30, 2019.  This standard replaces guidance in International Accounting 
Standard ('IAS') 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. It includes requirements on the 
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. It also includes an expected credit losses 
model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. However, in respect of companies holding 
financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan, SECP through SRO 985(I)/2019 dated September 2, 
2019 has notified that the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit 
Losses method shall not be applicable till June 30, 2021 and that such companies shall follow relevant 
requirements of IAS 39 in respect of above referred financial assets during the exemption period. Accordingly, 
the Group has changed its accounting policies and followed the requirements of IFRS 9 for:

- classification and measurement of all financial assets; and
- recognition of loss allowance for financial assets other than the financial assets due from the Government of 
Pakistan.

In respect of application of IFRS 9, the Group has adopted modified retrospective approach as permitted by this 
standard, according to which the Group is not required to restate the prior period results. The adoption of IFRS 9 
has not resulted in any impact on the opening balance of un-appropriated profit. In respect of classification of 
financial assets, the Group’s management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets held 
by the Group and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories (i.e. mainly 
financial assets previously classified as ‘loans and receivables’ have now been classified as ‘financial assets at 
amortised cost’).

This standard was notified by the SECP to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018. 
This standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users 
of the consolidated financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash 
flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control 
of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The 
standard replaces IAS 18, ‘Revenue’, and IAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’, and related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach for transition. This approach requires 
entities to recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance 
of un-appropriated profit in the period of initial application. Comparative prior year periods would not be 
adjusted. The application of IFRS 15 does not have any impact on the revenue recognition policy of the Group 
and therefore, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of 
un-appropriated profit in the period of initial application is nil. Therefore, the comparative information has not 
been restated and continues to be reported under the previous accounting policy.

Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective in the current year

2.2

2.2.1
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Exemption from applicability of certain interpretations to standards

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Group

SECP through SRO 24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 has granted exemption from the application of 
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ('IFRIC') 4, 'Determining whether an 
Arrangement contains a Lease', and IFRIC 12, 'Service Concession Arrangements', to all companies.

Under IFRIC 4, the consideration required to be made by the lessee for the right to use the asset is to be 
accounted for as a finance lease under IAS 17, 'Leases'. The Group's power plants' control due to purchase of 
total output by CPPA-G appears to fall under the scope of IFRIC 4. Consequently, if the Group were to follow 
IFRIC 4 and IAS 17, the effect on the consolidated financial statements would be as follows:

There are certain standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and interpretations that are 
mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, but are considered not to be 
relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these 
consolidated financial statements, except for the following:

- IFRS 16, ‘Leases’: this standard has been notified by the SECP to be effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2019. This standard replaces the current guidance in IAS 17, ‘Leases’ and is a far reaching 
change in accounting by lessees in particular. Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction 
between a finance lease (on statement of financial position) and an operating lease (off statement of financial 
position). IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a 
‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional exemption for certain 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. For 
lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on the definition 
of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected 
by the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations 
between lessors and lessees.

SECP through SRO 986(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has granted exemption from the requirements of 
IFRS 16 to all companies that have executed their power purchase agreements before January 1, 2019. 
Therefore, the standard will not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

-Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 on the definition of material: (effective for periods beginning on or after July 
1, 2019). These amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements' and IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, 
changes in accounting estimates and errors’, and consequential amendments to other IFRSs: i) use a consistent 
definition of materiality throughout IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; ii) clarify 
the explanation of the definition of material; and iii) incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial 
information. It is unlikely that these amendments will have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated 
financial statements.

2.2.2
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De-recognition of trade debts

De-recognition of property, plant and equipment

Recognition of lease debtor 

Decrease in un-appropriated profit at the beginning of the year

Increase in profit for the year

Decrease in un-appropriated profit at the end of the year

2019 2018

       (17,915,116)              (19,123,827)

         (4,943,883)                (3,776,408)

         13,764,202                13,252,238 

         (9,647,998)                (9,967,500)

              553,201                     319,503 

         (9,094,797)                (9,647,997)

(Rupees in thousand)

2.2.3
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- Amendment to IFRS 9, Financial instruments’, on prepayment features with negative compensation and 
modification of financial liabilities: (effective for periods beginning on or after July 1, 2019). This amendment 
confirmed two points: (1) that reasonable compensation for prepayments can be both negative or positive cash 
flows when considering whether a financial asset solely has cash flows that are principal and interest and (2) that 
when a financial liability measured at amortised cost is modified without this resulting in de-recognition, a gain 
or loss should be recognised immediately in profit or loss. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference 
between the original contractual cash flows and the modified cash flows discounted at the original effective 
interest rate. It is unlikely that this amendment will have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated 
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost except that certain 
retirement benefits have been measured at present value and certain classes of property, plant and equipment 
have been measured at 'fair value less costs of disposal'.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by 
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the 
Group’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the area that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of 
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to the estimates and assumptions turning out to be 
wrong. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in other notes together 
with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the consolidated financial 
statements.

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. 
Instances where the Group’s view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment 
stage and where the Group considers that its views on items of material nature is in accordance with the law, the 
amounts are shown as contingent liabilities. The recognition of deferred taxes is made taking into account these 
judgements and the best estimates of future results of operations of the Group.

The Group reviews the useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment 
on regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective 
items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Estimates with respect to impairment of non-financial assets as disclosed in note 4.5 to these consolidated 
financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its retirement benefit 
obligations. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 8.3.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances.

Basis of measurement

3.1

3.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Provision for taxation

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment  

Impairment testing of non-financial assets

a)

b)

c)

3.
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During the year, RPPL's PPA was extended by a period of eighty five days owing to non-supply of RLNG under 
interim GSA treated as an 'Other Force Majeure Event' under PPA, thereby resulting in an increase in useful 
lives of freehold land, plant and office building on freehold land and plant and equipment by approximately 
three months. Such a change in useful lives has been accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in 
accordance with IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. The effect of this 
change in the accounting estimate on the consolidated profit before taxation for the year ended June 30, 2019, 
carrying amount of operating fixed assets as at that date and future profits before taxation is not material, hence, 
has not been detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set 
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls 
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date 
that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are 
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of 
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes 
in equity and consolidated statement of financial position respectively.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the 
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in consolidated statement of profit or 
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained 
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in 
consolidated other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly 
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in consolidated 
other comprehensive income are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interest that do not result in a loss of control as transactions 
with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying 
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interest to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any 
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interest and any consideration paid or 
received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Group.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss except to the extent that relates to items recognised directly in equity or consolidated other 
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or consolidated other comprehensive 
income.

3.3 Change in accounting estimate

a) Subsidiaries

4.2 Taxation
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Current

Deferred

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax 
rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted and after taking into account available tax credits and 
rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision 
for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

The profits and gains of the Group derived from electric power generation are exempt from tax in terms of 
clause 132 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the conditions and 
limitations provided therein.

Under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Power Generation 
Sector is also exempt from levy of minimum tax on 'turnover' under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001. However, full provision is made in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on income from sources not 
covered under the above clauses at current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credits and 
rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision 
for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences 
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. However, the deferred 
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a 
business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based 
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date. Deferred 
tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or 
charged to consolidated other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in consolidated other 
comprehensive income or equity.

Deferred tax on temporary differences relating to the power generation operations of the Group has not been 
provided in these consolidated financial statements as the Group's management believes that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future due to the fact that the profits and gains of the Group 
derived from electric power generation are exempt from tax subject to the conditions and limitations provided 
for in terms of clause 132 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

Deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries are 
recognised, except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) the Parent Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and

(b)  it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Operating fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment 
loss. However, freehold land owned by the Parent Company is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

4.3

4.3.1

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets
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Depreciation on all operating fixed assets is charged to income by using the straight line method so as to write 
off the depreciable amounts of an asset over its estimated useful life at the annual rates mentioned in note 15.1 
after taking into account their residual values. Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is 
available for use, while in case of disposal it is charged up to the month of disposal. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on 
depreciation is significant. The Group's estimate of the residual value of its operating fixed assets as at June 30, 
2019, has not required any adjustment as its impact is considered insignificant.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.5).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are included in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred. Exchange differences related to foreign 
currency loans obtained for the acquisition, development and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as 
referred to in note 4.18(b) to these consolidated financial statements.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with 
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. 
These are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when these are available for use.

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when an entity expects to 
use them for more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when 
such items are available for use.

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software and Enterprise Resource Planning ('ERP') system has been 
capitalised as an intangible asset and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment 
loss. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method at the annual rate mentioned in note 16.

Amortisation on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or 
capitalised while no amortisation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed of. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 4.5).

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested 
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be 
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest 
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows 
from other assets or groups of assets [cash-generating units ('CGUs')]. Non-financial assets other than goodwill 
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting 
period.

4.3.2

4.4

4.5

4.3.3

Capital work-in-progress

Intangible assets

Impairment of non-financial assets

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment
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4.6 Derivative financial instruments

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at their fair values. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on 
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The 
Group has not designated any derivatives as hedging instruments and accordingly, the changes in fair value re-
measurement are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Trading derivatives are classified as 
a current asset or liability.

These are stated at cost less provision for obsolescence, if any. Cost of stores, spares and loose tools other than 
chemicals and lubricants is determined under weighted average basis, whereas the cost of chemicals and 
lubricants is determined on first-in-first-out ('FIFO') basis. Stores, spares and loose tools in transit are stated at 
cost. Cost comprises of invoice value and other charges paid there-on upto reporting date. For items which are 
slow moving and/or identified as obsolete, adequate provision is made for any excess book value over estimated 
realisable value.

The maintenance sub-contractor is responsible to replenish mandatory stores and spares as used by them. 

This is stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on FIFO basis. Net realizable value is 
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

If the expected net realisable value is lower than the carrying amount, a write-down is recognised for the amount 
by which the carrying amount exceeds its net realisable value.

From July 1, 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets, other than those due from the Government of 
Pakistan, in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value [either through other comprehensive income ('OCI') or through  
   profit or loss], and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For 
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made 
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through 
other comprehensive income ('FVOCI').

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets 
changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the 
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash 
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.9.1

Stores, spares and loose tools 

Inventory of fuel oil

Financial assets

Classification
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 
not at fair value through profit or loss ('FVPL'), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their 
cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset 
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group 
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method, except for delayed payment markup 
on amounts due under the PPA which is included in revenue. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is 
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of 
profit or loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where 
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements 
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest 
income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is 
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or 
loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate 
method. Impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on 
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it 
arises.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has 
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. 
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s 
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment 
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported 
separately from other changes in fair value.

From July 1, 2018, the Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its 
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate comparative information. As a 
result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s 
previous accounting policy. 

Debt instruments

Equity instruments

4.9.4 Impairment of financial assets other than those due from the Government of Pakistan
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Classification

Until June 30, 2018, the Group classified its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale and held to maturity. The classification depended on the 
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determined the classification of its financial 
assets at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were the financial assets held for trading and financial assets 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives were also categorized as 
held for trading unless they were designated as hedges. A financial asset was classified as held for trading if 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in this category were classified as current 
assets if expected to be settled within twelve months, otherwise, they were classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables were non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They were included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve 
months after the statement of financial position date, which were classified as non-current assets. Loans and 
receivables comprised of trade debts, advances, deposits, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the 
consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where management has the intention 
and ability to hold till maturity were classified as held to maturity and were stated at amortized cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets were non-derivatives that were either designated in this category or not 
classified in any of the other categories. They were included in non-current assets unless management intends to 
dispose of the investments within twelve months from the reporting date.

All financial assets were recognized at the time when the Group became a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments were recognized on trade-date – the date on which 
the Group committed to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets were initially recognized at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at 
fair value through profit or loss were initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs were expensed in the 
statement of profit or loss. Financial assets were derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
assets expired or had been transferred and the Group had transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were 
subsequently carried at fair value. For investments having quoted price in active market, the quoted price 
represented the fair value. In other cases, fair value was measured using appropriate valuation methodology and 
where fair value could not be measured reliably, these were carried at cost. Loans and receivables and held to 
maturity investments were carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' 
category were presented in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arose. Dividend income 
from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss as part of other income when the Group's right to receive payments was established.
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Loans and receivablesb)

Held to maturityc)

Available-for-sale financial assetsd)

Recognition and measurement
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Changes in the fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale were recognized in consolidated other 
comprehensive income. When securities classified as available-for-sale were sold or impaired, the accumulated 
fair value adjustments recognized in equity were included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as gains 
and losses from investment securities. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective 
interest method was recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.  Dividends on available-for-sale 
equity instruments were recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the Group’s right to 
receive payments was established.

The Group assessed at each reporting date whether there was objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets was impaired. If any such evidence existed for available-for-sale financial assets, the 
cumulative loss was removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on equity instruments were not 
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs 
are expensed on profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Group intends 
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan include trade debts and other receivables due from 
CPPA-G under the PPA that also includes accrued amounts. As referred to in these consolidated financial 
statements, SECP through SRO 985(I)/2019 dated September 2, 2019 has notified that, in respect of companies 
holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan, the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with 
respect to application of Expected Credit Losses method shall not be applicable till June 30, 2021 and that such 
companies shall follow relevant requirements of IAS 39 in respect of above referred financial assets during the 
exemption period. Accordingly, the same continue to be reported as per the following accounting policy:

Trade debts are amounts due from CPPA in the ordinary course of business. They are generally due for 
settlement as referred to in note 22 and therefore are all classified as current. Trade debts are recognised initially 
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when 
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade debts with the objective to collect the contractual 
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to 
collect all the amount due according to the original terms of the receivable. 

4.10 Financial liabilities
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that the financial 
asset is impaired. The financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a 
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they 
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicates that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that 
correlate with defaults. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been 
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. When the 
financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the provision. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the 
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the 
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents represent deposits held at call with banks and running finance under mark-up 
arrangements which form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
stated at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective 
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for 
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings 
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they 
are incurred.

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents4.13
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Foreign currency transactions and translation4.18

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the Group operates (the functional currency). The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. All 
figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss except for exchange differences related to foreign 
currency loans obtained for the acquisition, development and construction of qualifying assets which are 
capitalised over the period of the implementation agreements in accordance with SRO 24(I)/2012 dated January 
16, 2012 of the SECP. 

Revenue shall be recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a 
promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains 
control of that asset and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service.

- Revenue from sale of electricity to CPPA-G, the sole customer of the Group, is recorded based upon the output 
delivered and capacity available based on the rates determined under the mechanism laid down in the PPAs.

- Other supplemental charges representing delayed payment markup on amounts due under the PPAs are 
accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of return under 
the PPAs

For the Parent Company, the invoices are generally raised on a monthly basis and are due after 30 days from 
acknowledgement by CPPA-G. For RPPL, the invoices for fuel cost component are raised on a weekly basis and 
are due after 3 days from acknowledgement by CPPA-G. Monthly invoice for energy purchase price and 
capacity purchase price are raised on the first of the following month which are due after 25 days from 
acknowledgement by CPPA-G.

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends 
are declared and other appropriations are recognised in the period in which these are approved by the relevant 
Board of Directors.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits are recognised in respect of employees’ 
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated 
statement of financial position.
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Other long term employee benefit obligations - accumulating compensated absences4.22.2

The Group provides for accumulating compensated absences of the Parent Company's employees in 
accordance with respective entitlement on cessation of service.

The Group operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all employees of the Parent Company according to the 
terms of employment, subject to a minimum qualifying period of service and provision is made annually to 
cover the obligations under the scheme. These benefits are calculated with reference to last drawn salaries and 
prescribed qualifying periods of service of the employees.

The Group maintains an approved gratuity fund for all permanent employees of RPPL. Provisions are made in 
the consolidated financial statements to cover obligations on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out 
annually. The most recent actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2019 using the "Projected Unit 
Credit Method".

The actual return on plan assets represents the difference between the fair value of plan assets at the beginning of 
the year and as at the end of the year after adjustments for contributions made by the Group as reduced by 
benefits paid during the year.

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in consolidated other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Past 
service costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The significant 
assumptions used for actuarial valuation are stated in note 8.3.

The Group operates a recognized provident fund for all eligible employees of RPPL. Equal monthly 
contributions are made, both by the Group and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary 
subject to completion of minimum qualifying period of service as determined under the rules of the fund. 
During the year, the Group has revised the rate from 10% to 9%. The Group has no further payment obligations 
once the contributions have been paid. Obligations for contributions to the defined contribution plan are 
recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; 
or 

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability.

The Group is the lessee:

Post employment benefits4.22.3

Defined benefit plansa)

Un-funded gratuity planI)

Funded gratuity planii)

Defined contribution plan - provident fundb)

Contingent liabilities4.23

Leases4.24
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Operating leases4.24.1

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified 
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are 
charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share ('EPS') data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Parent 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is 
determined by adjusting the consolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

As at June 30, 2019, 211,397,063 (2018: 211,397,063) ordinary shares of the Parent Company which represent 
58.18% (2018: 58.18% ) of the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Parent Company are held by 
DEL Power (Private) Limited, the Holding Company. Previously, 211,397,063 ordinary shares of the Parent 
Company which represented 58.18% of the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Parent Company 
were held by Descon Engineering Limited till December 15, 2017 as explained in note 1.1.2.

Ordinary shares of the Parent Company held by related parties (other than the Holding Company) as at year end 
are as follows:

Mr Abdul Razak Dawood ceased to be a director of the Company with effect from August 15, 2018.

No other related party holds any shares in the Company.

This reserve can be utilised by the Group only for the purposes specified in Section 81 of the Act.

Earnings per share4.25

5. Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

2019 2018

3,594,800
          

3,594,800
                

39,000

               

39,000

                     3,633,800 3,633,800

2019 2018

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

359,480,000 359,480,000     fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued 

3,900,000 3,900,000    for consideration other than cash

363,380,000 363,380,000

Directors

(Number of shares)

Mr Faisal Dawood

Mr Farooq Nazir

Mr Shah Muhammad Chaudhry

Syed Rizwan Ali Shah

Descon Holdings (Private) Limited

2019 2018

Mr Taimur Dawood

Mr Abdul Razak Dawood

Mr Fazal Hussain Asim

Other related party

- note 5.2.1                        -                              500 

                  1,000                         1,000 

                22,500                               -   

                     500                            500 

                     500                            500 

                     500                            500 

                     500                            500 

                30,000                       30,000 

55,500 33,500 

(Rupees in thousand)

(Number of shares)

5.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.3

6.
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2019 2018

- note 7.1 & 7.3 1,201,336

          

2,664,119

                
- note 7.2 & 7.3 911,330

             

2,020,992

                
2,112,666

          

4,685,111

                

(1,201,336)

         

(1,776,079)

              

7. Long term financing - secured 

These are composed of the following long term loans taken from

     Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited ('SCB'):

- Facility A

- Facility B

Current portion shown under current liabilities:

- Facility A

- Facility B (911,330)

            

(1,347,328)

              

(2,112,666)

         

(3,123,407)

              
-

                     

1,561,704

                

(Rupees in thousand)

This facility carries mark-up at the rate of three months London Inter Bank Offered Rate ('LIBOR') plus 4 
percent per annum, payable on quarterly basis on the outstanding amount. The said loan is secured by first 
charge on fixed assets of RPPL amounting to USD 49 million, assignment of RPPL's receivables relating to 
capacity payments and lien on debt service account maintained by RPPL with SCB. The mark-up rate charged 
during the year on the outstanding balance ranged from 6.34% to 6.81% (2018: 5.30% to 6.34%) per annum. 
The loan is repayable in one semi-annual instalment ending on September 30, 2019.

This facility carries mark-up at the rate of three months LIBOR plus 1.4 percent per annum, payable on quarterly 
basis on the outstanding amount. The said loan is secured by assignment of RPPL's receivables relating to 
capacity payments and lien on collection account maintained by RPPL with the Trustee. The mark-up rate 
charged during the year on the outstanding balance ranged from 3.74% to 4.20% (2018: 2.70% to 3.74%) per 
annum. The loan is repayable in two equal quarterly instalments ending on December 31, 2019.

7.1

7.2

Arranger / underwriter

Facility amount

Facility utilized

Term in years 

Repayment terms

Interest per annum and payment terms

Amounts outstanding under the facilities

     as at June 30, 2019

7.3       Major terms of the above loans are as under:

Quarterly

3 months LIBOR plus 4%

Quarterly

3 months LIBOR plus 1.4%

US$ 27.700 million

US$ 5.540 million

Facility A

SCB

US$ 36.515 million

US$ 36.515 million

2.5

US$ 27.700 million

2.5

US$ 7.303 million

instalments

Facility B

SCB

10 equal quarterly

instalments

5 equal semi-annual 
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2019 2018

- note 8.1 4,640

             

3,937

- note 8.2 467

                

441

5,107 4,378

8. Deferred liabilities

Classified under non-current liabilities

Unfunded

Staff gratuity

Accumulating compensated absences 

Funded

Gratuity fund - note 8.3 18,185 20,228

23,292 24,606

(Rupees in thousands)

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

3,937             3,015               

703                 922                   

4,640             3,937               

-                  -                   

4,640              3,937               

441                387                  

26                   54                     

467                441                  

-                  -                   

8.1 Staff gratuity 

Opening liability

Provision for the year

Payments during the year

Closing liability

8.2 Accumulating compensated absences 

Opening liability

Provision for the year

Payments during the year

Closing liability 467                441                  

8.3 The latest actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2019 under the projected unit 
credit method as per the requirements of IAS 19, the details of which are as follows: 

2019 2018

14.25% 9.00%

8.00% 8.00%

8.3.1 Actuarial assumptions

Valuation discount rate 

Expected rate of increase in salaries 

Mortality rates SLIC (2001-05)-1 SLIC (2001-05)-1

42,115

           

36,633

            
(23,930)

          

(16,405)

          

8.3.2 Net defined benefit obligation

The amounts recognized in consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Closing net liability 18,185 20,228

(Percentage)



2019 2018

20,228

           

19,997

            
5,798

             

5,766

              

3,444

             

2,513

              

(1,682)

            

(963)

               

7,560

             

7,316

              
(1,442) 104

(8,161) (7,189)

18,185

           

20,228

            36,633

           

30,204

            

5,798

             

5,766

              

3,444 2,513

(2,753) (666)

(1,007)

            

(1,184)

            

42,115

           

36,633

            

16,405

           

10,207

            

1,682 963

(1,311)

            

(770)

               

(1,007)

            

(1,794)

            

8,161

             

7,799

              

23,930

           

16,405

            
5,798

             

5,766

              

3,444

             

2,513

              

(1,682)

            

(963)

               

1,762

             

1,550

              

7,560

             

7,316

              

(1,381) (124)

(1,372) (542)

(2,753) (666)

8.3.3

Total remeasurements for the year (credited)/ charged to consolidated 

8.3.4

8.3.5

8.3.6

8.3.7

Movement in net defined benefit obligation

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Movement in fair value of plan assets

Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of

     profit or loss

Remeasurements (credited)/ charged to consolidated

      other comprehensive income

Opening net liability

Current service cost

Net interest on defined benefit obligation

Return on plan asset during the year

Charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss

other comprehensive income

Contributions made by the Group during the year

Closing net liability

Opening present value of defined benefit obligation

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Remeasurement gains on obligation

Benefits paid during the year

Closing present value of defined benefit obligation 

Opening fair value of plan assets 

Interest income on plan assets

Remeasurement losses on fair value of plan assets

Benefits paid during the year

Contributions made during the year

Closing fair value of plan assets 

Current service cost

Interest cost

Interest income on plan assets

Net interest cost

Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions

Experience adjustments

Remeasurements on fair value of plan assets 1,311 770

(1,442) 104

(Rupees in thousands)

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED
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8.3.8 Composition / fair value of plan assets 

(Rupees in 

thousand) Percentage

(Rupees in 

thousand) Percentage

375 2% 357 2%Term deposit receipts

Cash and cash equivalents (after 

adjusting current liabilities) 23,555 98% 16,048 98%

23,930 100% 16,405 100%

8.3.9 Available historical information

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

42,115

            

36,633

             

30,204

            

23,291

             

18,155

            

(23,930)

           

(16,405)

            

(10,207)

          

(6,230)

              

(960)

               

18,185

            

20,228

             

19,997

            

17,061

             

17,195

            
(2,753)

             

(666)

                 

2,062

              

(492)

                 

1,227

              

Present value of defined 

benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Deficit in plan

Experience adjustment arising on 

plan liabilities (gain)/loss

Experience adjustment arising on 

plan assets loss (1,311)

             

(770)

                 

(391)

               

(277)

                 

(88)

                 

Changes in Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption assumption assumption

1% (3,431) 2,565 (3,361) 2,519Discount rate

Salary growth rate 1% 2,342 (3,284) 2,519 (3,231)

2019 2018

8.3.10     The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

2019 2018

Impact on defined benefit obligation

-----------------------------(Rupees in thousands)------------------------

Amounts for current year and previous four annual periods of the present value of defined benefit obligation 
and fair value of plan assets are as follows :

-----------------------------(Rupees in thousands)------------------------
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'The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When 
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same 
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the 
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognized 
within the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Parent Company expects to receive dividend from its subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. Accordingly a 
deferred tax liability on taxable undistributed profits of the subsidiary companies has been recognized in these 
consolidated financial statements.
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9. Deferred taxation

9.2

10. Trade and other payables

The liability for deferred tax represents temporary difference relating to:

Taxable undistributed earnings of subsidiaries

     The gross movement in deferred tax liability during the year is as follows:

Opening balance

Charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss

Closing balance

RLNG charges due to SNGPL

Payable to CPPA-G for gas efficiency and import of energy

Operation and maintenance charges payable

Other creditors

Withholding income tax payable

Withholding sales tax payable

Payable to RPPL's Employees' Provident Fund

Workers' profit participation fund

Provision for guarantee issued

Lenders' related costs

Others

2019 2018

- note 9.1 1,005,062
        

958,542

2019 2018

958,542

           

913,145

- note 28 46,520

             

45,397

1,005,062

        

958,542

2,103,351

        

654,968

28,967

             

4,735

- note 10.1 459,157

           

500,592

- note 10.2 101,212

           

123,462

10,003

             

8,756

329

                  

620

978

                  

1,081

- note 10.3 156,506

           

179,878

- note 10.4 6,842 6,842

3,356 2,716

- note 10.5 165,151 196,920

3,035,852 1,680,570

(Rupees in thousands)

(Rupees in thousands)

9.1
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              36,993              32,952 

            142,659            230,887 

              71,832              50,095 

            251,484            313,934 

17,593

             

30,324

5,008

               

873

2,749

               

2,225

31,227

             

-

24,453

             

53,267

81,030 86,689

179,878

           

155,466

- note 20.3 156,506

           

179,878

336,384 335,344

(179,878) (155,466)

156,506 179,878

             2019 2018

(Rupees in thousands)

Siemens Pakistan Engineering Company Limited (group company)

Siemens Aktiengesellschaft ('Siemens AG') (group company)

Descon Power Solutions (Private) Limited (common directorship)

Descon Engineering Limited (holding company till December 15, 2017 and

common directorship thereafter)

Descon Power Solutions (Private) Limited (common directorship)

Descon Corporation (Private) Limited (common directorship)

Siemens Pakistan Engineering Company Limited (group company)

Siemens AG (group company)

10.3

10.4

Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance

Provision for the year 

Payments made during the year

Closing balance

10.2     Includes the following amounts due to the following related parties:

10.1      Includes the following amounts due to the following related parties:

The Group has filed an appeal against the judgment of a single judge to challenge the levy and collection of 
infrastructure fee / cess imposed through the Sindh Finance (Amendment) Ordinance, 2001 on the movement of 
goods entering or leaving the province from or for outside the country.

The Court by its orders dated February 20, 1997, March 26, 2001 and November 11, 2003 granted the stay on 
levy of this fee / cess on the condition that the Group will furnish bank guarantee of equivalent amount till the 
final decision is made by the Court. Accordingly, the Group had arranged bank guarantees of Rs 64.95 million in 
favour of Director Excise and Taxation, Karachi and made full provision in the consolidated financial 
statements up to June 30, 2010. During the year 2008, the Sindh High Court ('SHC') in its decision dated 
September 17, 2008 declared the imposition of levy of infrastructure fee / cess on import of material before 
December 28, 2006 as void and invalid, and ordered the guarantees to be returned and encashed. However, the 
levy imposed with effect from December 28, 2006 was declared to be legal and valid. The Government of Sindh 
has filed an appeal before Supreme Court of Pakistan against the order of SHC. the Group has also filed an 
appeal before Supreme Court of Pakistan against the SHC's decision of imposition of levy after December 28, 
2006. During the year June 30, 2011, the Supreme Court of Pakistan ordered to agitate this matter before SHC. 
SHC, by consent of the Excise and Taxation Department, has passed an order whereby it has mainly ordered to 
discharge any bank guarantee furnished for consignments cleared up to December 27, 2006 and any guarantee 
for consignment cleared after December 27, 2006 shall be encashed to the extent of 50% and a bank guarantee 
for remaining amount will be kept alive till the future disposal of litigations. For future consignments goods will 
be cleared after 50% of the disputed amount has been paid by the respondents and bank guarantee of balance of 
50% has been furnished. Accordingly, the Group has made provision of Rs 6.842 million (2018 : Rs 6.842 
million) being 50% of disputed amount i.e. Rs 13.684 million.
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2019 2018

                   270                      -   

              43,469            133,542 

                     -                       18 

                   140                   280 

              43,879            133,840 

(Rupees in thousands)

10.5 

Siemens Pakistan Engineering Company Limited (group company)

Siemens AG (group company)

Descon Engineering Limited (holding company till December 15, 2017 and

common directorship thereafter)

Descon Power Solutions (Private) Limited (common directorship)

     Includes the following amounts due to the following related parties:

10.6 Workers' welfare fund ('WWF') has not been provided for in these consolidated financial statements based on 
the advice of the Group's legal consultant. However, in case the Parent Company or RPPL pay WWF, the same is 
recoverable from CPPA-G as a pass through item under section 14.2(a) of the Parent Company's PPA and Part 
III of Schedule 6 of RPPL's PPA.

The running finance facilities obtained from various financial institutions under mark-up arrangements 
aggregate to Rs 3,300 million (2018: Rs 3,300 million). These facilities carry mark-up rates based on Karachi 
Inter-Bank Offered Rate ('KIBOR') plus spread basis points per annum, payable quarterly, on the balance 
outstanding. The facilities are secured against first hypothecation charge over present and future current assets 
of the Group, cross corporate guarantee issued by Descon Engineering Limited (holding company till 
December 15, 2017 and related party, on the basis of common directorship, thereafter) and assignment of 
present and future Energy Purchase Price receivables to the lenders.  The mark-up rate charged during the year 
on the outstanding balance ranged from 7.50% to 14.80% (2018: 6.14% to 7.50% ) per annum.

The facilities for opening letters of guarantee, letters of credit and stand-by letters of credit aggregate to Rs 
1,000 million (2018: Rs 1,000 million), Rs 100 million (2018: Rs 100 million) and Rs 6,000 million (2018: Rs 
6,000 million), respectively. The amount utilised at June 30, 2019, for letters of guarantee, letters of credit and 
stand-by letters of credit was Rs 575.21 million (2018: Rs 580.55 million), Nil (2018: Rs 9.46 million) and Rs 
4,981 million (2018: Rs 4,120 million), respectively. The aggregate facilities for opening letters of credit and 
guarantee are secured against first hypothecation charge over present and future current assets of the Group, 
cross corporate guarantee issued by Descon Engineering Limited (holding company till December 15, 2017 and 
related party, on the basis of common directorship, thereafter) and assignment of present and future Energy 
Purchase Price receivables to the lenders.

Short term  borrowings - secured11.

11.1 Running finances

11.2 Letters of credit, guarantee and stand-by letters of credit

12. Mark-up accrued

Mark-up accrued on:

Long term financing - secured

Short term borrowings - secured

2019 2018

                1,292                1,899 

              96,299              45,592 

              97,591              47,491 

(Rupees in thousands)
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This represents derivative interest rate swap arrangement with a commercial bank. Under the terms of the 
arrangement, the Group pays a fixed interest rate of 4.80 percent per annum to the arranging bank on the 
notional USD amount for the purposes of the interest rate swap, and receives three-Month USD London Inter-
Bank Offered Rate ('LIBOR') on the notional USD amount from the arranging bank. There have been no 
transfer of liabilities under the arrangement, only the nature of interest payment has changed. The derivative 
interest rate swap outstanding as at June 30, 2019 has been marked to market and the resulting gain has been 
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In financial year 2014, the taxation authorities issued a show cause notice amounting to Rs 157 million on 
account of input sales tax alleged to be wrongly claimed for the period July 2009 to June 2013. The department 
is of the view that input tax paid by the Group should be split among taxable and non-taxable supplies. The 
Group based on a legal advice, is of the view that component of capacity revenue is not considered value of 
supply and rule of apportionment is not applicable in case of Independent Power Producers ('IPPs') for the 
reason that the ultimate product is electrical energy, which is taxable. The Group submitted reply for the show 
cause notice, which was rejected by the taxation authorities and a demand for the above mentioned amount was 
created. Consequently, Group filed an appeal with Appellate Tribunal Inland revenue ('ATIR') against the 
demand which was also rejected. The Group preferred an appeal before LHC which granted stay to the Group 
after payments of Rs 10.12 million against the total demand of Rs 157 million. The LHC vide its judgement in 
case No. STR 120/2015 dated October 31, 2016 decided the case in favour of the Group and the deposit was 
refunded to the Group. The department has challenged the decision of LHC before Supreme Court of Pakistan 
on February 4, 2017 and has also preferred an intra court appeal against such order which are pending 
adjudication. Since, the case has already been decided in Group's favour on merits by LHC, no provision for this 
amount has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

In respect of tax year 2009, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ('ACIR') raised demand of Rs 0.74 
million under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which mainly related to taxation of interest 
on delayed payments, scrap sales and gain on disposal of operating fixed assets. The Group preferred an appeal 
before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) ['CIR(A)'] against the impugned tax demand. The CIR(A) 
decided the appeal in favour of Group thereby deleting the alleged tax demand. The tax department has filed an 
appeal before the ATIR against the order of CIR(A) on August 1, 2016 and the case is now pending for 
adjudication. The Group has not made any provision against the above demand as the case has already been 
decided in Group's favour on merits by CIR(A) and the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of 
the appeal would be in favour of the Group, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax consultant and the 
relevant law and the facts.

In respect of tax years 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the ACIR raised demands aggregating to Rs 9.3 million under 
section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which mainly related to subjecting capacity price 
payments to minimum taxation under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Group preferred an 
appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) ['CIR(A)'] against the impugned tax demand. The 
CIR(A) decided the appeal in favour of Group thereby deleting the alleged tax demand. The tax department has 
filed an appeal before the ATIR against the order of CIR(A) on November 3, 2016 and the case is now pending 
for adjudication. The Group has not made any provision against the above demand as the case has already been 
decided in Group's favour on merits by CIR(A) and the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of 
the appeal would be in favour of the Group, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax consultant and the 
relevant law and the facts.

The taxation authorities in pursuance of show cause notice under section 182/114 for imposition of penalty for 
late filing of return for tax year 2014, issued order thereby creating demand amounting to Rs 16.84 million. 
Aggrieved with the said order, the Group has preferred an appeal before CIR(A), wherein relief sought was not 
provided. Aggrieved with the order of CIR(A), Group has preferred an appeal before ATIR on May 7, 2018 and 
the case is pending adjudication. The Group has not made any provision against the above demand as the 
management is confident that the ultimate outcome of the appeal would be in favour of the Group, inter alia on 
the basis of the advice of the tax consultant and the relevant law and the facts.

13.
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14. Contingencies and commitments

14.1Contingencies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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In respect of tax year 2015, the Additional Commissioner (Audit), Inland Revenue ['AC(A)IR'] passed an 
amended assessment order under section 122(5A), creating income tax demand amounting to Rs 81.60 million 
which mainly relates to denying the claim of exemption of dividend income from PMCL (wholly owned 
subsidiary) on account of non-filing of group tax return for the said tax year. The Group being aggrieved of the 
said order filed appeal before CIR(A). CIR(A), through order dated April 16, 2018, has accepted all the 
contentions of the Group except the taxation of dividend income thereby reducing the demand to Rs 68.33 
million. On April 18, 2018, the Group has filed an appeal before ATIR against the CIR(A)'s order and has not 
made any provision against the above demand as the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of the 
appeal would be in favour of the Group, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax consultant and the relevant 
law and the facts.

In respect of tax year 2016, the AC(A)IR passed an amended assessment order under section 122(5A), creating 
income tax demand amounting to Rs 150.97 million which mainly relates to taxability of dividend income from 
PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary) on accrual basis. The Group being aggrieved of the said order filed the appeal 
before CIR(A). CIR(A), through order dated April 16, 2018, has accepted all the contentions of the Group 
except the taxation of dividend income thereby reducing the demand to Rs 147.52 million. On April 18, 2018, 
the Group has filed an appeal before ATIR against the CIR(A)'s order and has not made any provision against the 
above demand as the management is confident that the ultimate outcome of the appeal would be in favour of the 
Group, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax consultant and the relevant law and the facts.

In November 2012, the tax authorities raised a demand of Rs 2,026 million on account of input sales tax along 
with default surcharge and penalty alleging non-apportionment of input tax to revenue representing Capacity 
Purchase Price for the period July 2007 to June 2011. The demand was upheld up to the level of the Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue ('ATIR') and the matter is now pending before the Islamabad High Court on reference 
application filed by the Group. The Islamabad High Court also suspended order of the ATIR while deciding the 
petition for stay against tax recovery filed by the Group. The Islamabad High Court has reserved its judgement 
in this case. The Lahore High Court in a parallel case has decided the case in taxpayer's favour and a similar 
outcome is expected in the Group's case.

In October 2013, the tax authorities issued show cause notice for sales tax demand of Rs 675 million along with 
default surcharge and penalty on the same matter for the period July 2011 to June 2012.  On petition filed by the 
Group, the High Court directed the assessing officer to decide the case of the Group in line with the expected 
judgment of the High Court on the same matter. Similar demands of Rs 1,384 million along with default 
surcharge and penalty for the period July 2012 to June 2014 were remanded back to the Taxation Officer by the 
CIR (A) with the same directions through orders in appeal dated August 17, 2015 and May 09, 2016, 
respectively.

As the matter of apportionment of input sales tax is common to the power generation industry, it is likely to be 
decided by the Islamabad High Court by taking up all related appeals jointly. Based on the opinion of the 
Group's legal counsel and in the view of the latest favourable decision on a similar issue in a parallel case by the 
LHC, a favourable outcome is expected and no provision in this regard has been made in these consolidated 
financial statements.

CPPA-G had raised invoices for liquidated damages ('Lds') to the Group for the operating year starting from 
December 11, 2012 to December 10, 2013 (after taking into account forced outage allowance stipulated under 
the terms of RPPL's PPA) on account of short supply of electricity by the Group, which was due to cash flow 
constraints of the Group as a result of default by CPPA-G in making timely payments. Estimated amount of 
liquidated damages is not expected to exceed Rs 1,588 million, based on the best estimate of the management of 
the Group and invoices raised by CPPA-G. 

The Group disputed the claim on account of LDs on the premise that its failure to dispatch electricity was due to 
CPPA-G’s non-payment of dues on timely basis to the Group and consequential inability of the Group to make 
timely payments to its gas supplier that resulted in inadequate level of electricity production owing to 
curtailment / suspension of gas supply. In this regard, the Group initiated the expert adjudication under the 
dispute resolution procedures specified in the PPA. The case was decided by the expert in the Group’s favour in 
August 2014.  Decision of the expert is however not legally binding on any party.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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In 2017, a Settlement Agreement for resolution of this LDs dispute was agreed by the respective Boards of 
directors of CPPA-G and the Group. Under the proposed Settlement Agreement, the period of non-performance 
due to unavailability of gas shall be treated as Other Force Majeure Event ('OFME') by CPPA-G under the PPA. 
As a result, the Group will not be entitled to any Capacity Payment for this period from CPPA-G and CPPA-G 
will not levy any LDs on the Group. By declaration of OFME, the PPA of the Group will be extended by the 
OFME period.

Similarly, in January 2017, SNGPL suspended the gas supply for a period of 26 days and as a result CPPA-G 
levied LDs amounting to Rs 858 million. The Group disputes this amount on the premise that it has already 
issued an OFME notice to CPPA-G in January for a period of 26 days. The same period is also contemplated as 
OFME in the proposed Settlement Agreement. Due to declaration of OFME, the Group did not raise Capacity 
Payment invoice for this period.

Once the Settlement Agreement is approved by the Government of Pakistan and signed by both the parties, the 
Group will refund the Capacity Payments already received from CPPA-G, which pertain to 2013 LDs period 
along with 50% of late payment interest accrued on these Capacity Payments. The event will be treated as 
OFME and PPA will be extended by a total of 112 days on account of 2013 and 2017 LDs period.

Subsequent to the year end, the Cabinet Committee on Energy ('CCOE') approved the terms of the Settlement 
Agreement between the Group and CPPA-G. However, the minutes of CCOE are yet to be ratified by the 
Federal Cabinet. Once these are ratified, the Group and CPPA-G shall sign the Settlement Agreement.

Upon finalisation of the Settlement Agreement, the estimated net charge on the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss is not expected to exceed Rs 1,480.773 million upto June 30, 2019.

Based on the above grounds, no provision for LDs has been recognised in these consolidated financial 
statements as the management expects that this matter will be resolved through settlement with CPPA-G after 
the approval of the Federal Cabinet.

For tax years 2011 and 2014, the tax authorities raised an aggregate demand of Rs 125.071 million subjecting 
capacity price payments to minimum taxation under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The matter 
was remanded back to the taxation officer for tax years 2011 and 2014 through orders dated April 05, 2016 and 
July 14, 2016 respectively. For the Tax years 2011 and 2014, the tax department has filed appeal before the ATIR 
dated September 28, 2016 respectively against the order of CIR(A) on this matter.

Based on advice of the Group's tax advisor and the favourable decision of ATIR on a parallel issue, the 
management believes that there are meritorious grounds to defend the Group's stance in respect of this matter. 
Consequently, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

For tax year 2014, in addition to minimum tax mentioned in note 14.1(ix), income tax of Rs 226.313 million was 
also levied on interest income and supplemental charges by disallowing set-off of such income against 
depreciation losses. While the CIR(A) upheld the taxation of supplemental charges, the issue of set-off of 
unabsorbed tax depreciation was remanded back to the assessing authority. Tax department has filed appeal to 
the ATIR dated September 28, 2016 on this matter.

Based on advice of the Group's tax advisor and favourable decision on a similar issue in a parallel power sector 
case, the management believes that there are meritorious grounds to support the Group's stance in respect of this 
matter. Consequently, no provision for this amount has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

The tax authorities amended the assessments for the tax years 2005 to 2010, subjecting bank interest income to 
tax and disallowing set-off against unabsorbed tax depreciation losses. An aggregate tax demand of Rs 76.4 
million was raised for these years. The appeals filed by the Group were accepted by the CIR(A) through order 
dated March 21, 2012, set-aside the demand and remanded the matter back. Both the Group and the tax 
authorities have filed appeals to the ATIR on May 22, 2012 and May 23, 2012 respectively on this matter and the 
case is pending adjudication. A favourable outcome is expected in view of decision of the ATIR in a parallel 
case, therefore, no provision for the demand amount has been made in these consolidated financial statements.
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During the previous year, the tax authorities amended the assessments for the tax years 2013 and 2015 in the 
same manner as for the Tax Year 2014, thereby subjecting bank interest income and supplemental charges to tax 
and disallowing set-off against depreciation losses. An aggregate tax demand of Rs 99.13 million was raised for 
these years. In appeal, the CIR(A) through order dated May 18, 2018 for tax years 2013 and 2015, accepted 
RPPL's claim of exemption on supplemental charges but upheld disallowance of set-off against unabsorbed tax 
depreciation. Both RPPL and the tax authorities have filed appeals to the ATIR on July 18, 2018 and July 19, 
2018 respectively on this matter and the case is pending adjudication. A favourable outcome is expected in view 
of decision of the ATIR in a parallel case, therefore, no provision for the demand amount has been made in these 
consolidated financial statements.

For the period July 2013 and June 2014, the tax authorities raised sales tax demand of Rs 344.4 million along 
with default surcharge and penalty alleging shortfall in sales tax pertaining to Gas Infrastructure Development 
Cess. On appeal filed by RPPL, the matter was remanded back to the Taxation Officer for re-adjudication. This 
is pending finalization, while RPPL as well as the tax department have filed appeal to the ATIR against the 
decision of the CIR(A). A favourable outcome is expected in view of decision of the ATIR in a parallel case, 
therefore, no provision for the demand amount has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

RPPL uses canal water for its plant for which it has an agreement with Irrigation Department, Sahiwal. 
Irrigation Department has levied canal water charges on maximum intake basis (7 Cusec) whereas the Group is 
of the view that canal water should be charged on actual consumption basis (3.62 Cusec). In order to resolve the 
issue, Arbitrator [Superintending Engineer ('SE') Irrigation Department] was appointed who decided the case 
against the Group. the Group, aggrieved by this decision, filed an appeal in Civil Court who referred the matter 
to SE Irrigation Department on September 09, 2015 for re-arbitration. Subsequent to the year end, the Arbitrator 
decided the case against the Group on July 6, 2019. the Group has filed an appeal before Civil Court Khanewal. 
The matter is pending adjudication in the Civil Court Khanewal. 

Furthermore, the Irrigation department made an exorbitant increase in water charges for usage of non-
agriculture canal water from Rs 8.65 per 1,000 cft to Rs 100 per 1,000 cft. RPPL along with other companies in 
the industry filed a petition in the Lahore High Court on June 22, 2006 against this exorbitant increase in canal 
water charges. The Court has issued a stay order and asked the department to issue a notification after an 
agreement with the concerned parties. 

While the matter is yet to be decided by the Arbitrator, the Irrigation Department has raised a demand of Rs 75.3 
million upto December 2017 based on exorbitant charges as well as actual water consumption. The Group has 
paid Rs 12.8 million and does not agree with the amount levied by the Irrigation Department on the basis of 
matter explained above.

The management is of the view that there are meritorious grounds available to defend the Group’s position in the 
above matters, hence no provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements in this connection.

The Group has issued the following guarantees:

Bank guarantees have been issued in favour of the Director, Excise and Taxation, Karachi aggregating Rs 
41.842 million (2018: Rs 56.842 million).

Bank guarantee has been issued to Collector of Customs amounting to Rs 2.760 million (2018: Rs 8.085 
million).

Standby letter of credit facility of Rs 4,981 million (2018: Rs 4,120 million) issued in favour of SNGPL. 

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited has issued bank guarantee amounting to Rs 532.68 million (2018: Rs 532.68 
million) in favour of SNGPL as a security to cover natural gas / RLNG supply for which payments are made in 
arrears. The guarantee is due to expire on December 14, 2019 and is renewable.

A guarantee amounting to Rs 0.69 million (2018: Rs 0.69 million) is available from Bank Alfalah Limited 
favouring Pakistan State Oil Company Limited ('PSO') against fuel supply.

(xii)

(xv)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(a)

(b)

c)

d)

e)

110ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

        

111 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

14.2 Commitments

15. Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

Capital work- in- progress

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment

(i)         Letters of credit other than capital expenditure aggregating to Nil (2018: Rs 9.46 million)

2019 2018

- note 15.1
17,840,604

      

19,117,597

- note 15.2
-

                   

9,267

- note 15.3
2,692 4,806

17,843,296 19,131,670

(Rupees in thousand)
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Freehold land represents an area measuring 1,045 Kanals and 12 Marlas in Tehsil Mian Channu, situated at 
Mouza Battian, District Khanewal, another area measuring 6 Kanals and 18 Marlas, situated at Pind Bagewal, 
Tehsil and District Islamabad and another area measuring 24 Kanals and 18 Marlas, situated at Tehsil Fateh 
Jang, District Attock.

Management has reviewed the business performance of the Parent Company's Power Generation operations 
during the year and an assessment has been made in respect of triggering events as specified by IAS 36, 
'Impairment of Assets' applicable to the assets relating to the Parent Company's Power Generation operations at 
a CGU level. Based on the following indicators applicable to the Parent Company's Power Generation CGU, an 
impairment test has been carried out by the management:

- Significant change in the technological and economic conditions;

- Decrease in the economic performance of the Parent Company’s Power Generation operations; and

- Forecast operating losses and net cash outflows for the Parent Company’s Power Generation operations.

Power Generation CGU of the Parent Company is comprised of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets and stores and spares. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on higher of ‘fair 
value less costs of disposal’ and ‘value in use’. Management involved an expert (professional valuer) to 
materially assess the 'fair value less costs of disposal' while the 'value in use' has been determined by 
management through discounted cash flow method. Based on the above, the ‘fair value less costs of disposal’ 
has been determined as higher of the two and consequently, has been used as the recoverable amount of the 
CGU. Since there are observable indications that the fair value of the CGU has declined significantly, therefore, 
it has been impaired.

The CGU has been written down from its carrying value of Rs 678.84 million to its recoverable amount of Rs 
605.67 million. The impairment loss has been entirely allocated to property, plant and equipment and has been 
recognised as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an 
exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a going concern 
without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction 
on adverse terms. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

The different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
   directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)      
   (level 3).

The fair value measurement of the Parent Company's Power Generation CGU is categorised within the level 3 
of fair value hierarchy in its entirety. Management has obtained independent valuation for the freehold land, 
building on freehold land and plant and machinery.

Level 2 fair value of freehold land has been derived using a comparable transactions approach. Sale prices of 
comparable land in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the 
property. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per kanal or acre.

Valuation techniques and key assumptions used to determine level 2 and level 3 fair values

15.1.3
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15.1.4

15.1.5 Fair value estimation
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Level 3 fair value of building on freehold land has been determined using a depreciated replacement cost 
approach, whereby, current cost of construction of a similar building in a similar location has been adjusted 
using a suitable depreciation rate and forced sale factor to arrive at present market value.

Level 3 fair value of plant and machinery has been determined using a depreciated replacement cost approach, 
whereby, the assets' purchase costs have been adjusted using suitable inflation, exchange rate fluctuation, 
obsolescence, depreciation and forced sale factors to arrive at present market value,

Costs of disposal of plant and machinery have been determined on the basis of estimate of installation cost of 
similar plant and machinery.

According to the SRO 24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 issued by SECP [as fully explained in note 4.18(b) to 
these consolidated financial statements], the Group is allowed to capitalize exchange gains/losses arising on 
outstanding amounts of foreign currency loans contracted under the implementation agreements with 
Government of Pakistan until the date of expiry of such implementation agreements. This represents the 
exchange difference on the foreign currency loan (Facility A), as referred to in note 7 to these consolidated 
financial statements, capitalised in accordance with the above mentioned SRO. Had the Group followed IAS 21 
'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates', the effect on the consolidated financial statements would 
be as follows:

15.1.6

2019 2018

(6,700,014)       (6,508,238)

24,517
             

17,718

(477,613)
          

(448,183)

(453,096)
          

(430,465)

-

                   

1,735

-

                   

7,532

-

                   

9,267

9,267

               

645

-

                   

10,805

(150)

                 

(3)

(9,117)

              

(2,180)

-

                   

9,267

4,806

               

3,870

-

                   

21,146

4,806

               

25,016

- note 15.1 -

                   

(20,210)

- note 15.1.4 (2,114) -

2,692 4,806

Decrease in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment

and un-appropriated profit as at June 30

Decrease in cost of sales

Increase in other expenses

Decrease in profit for the year

15.2 Capital work- in- progress

Civil works

Advances against purchase of vehicles

15.2.1     The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Transfers to operating fixed assets

Closing balance

15.3 Major spare parts and stand-by equipment

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Transfers during the year

Impairment charge for the year

Closing balance

(Rupees in thousand)



              

               

12,926

             

12,556

- note 16.3 -

                   

370

12,926

             

12,926

12,508 8,814

- note 16.1 284 3,694

12,792 12,508

134 418

16. Intangible assets

These represent computer software and ERP systems.

Cost

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Closing balance

Amortisation

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value as at June 30

Annual amortisation rate 33% 33%

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

The amortisation charge for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses as referred to in note 24.

ERP systems have been implemented by Descon Corporation (Private) Limited, a related party (on the basis of 
common directorship), under Service Level Agreement with the Group.

This represents ERP implementation/updating fees charged by Descon Corporation (Private) Limited, a related 
party (on the basis of common directorship).

The cost of fully amortised assets still in use as at June 30, 2019 is Rs 12.56 million (2018: Rs 11.77 million).

This represents interest free loans to Mr. Mubashar Ahmed Majeed, Chief Executive of RPPL and Mr. 
Muhammad Junaid Asghar, Chief Financial Officer of RPPL for house building as per terms of their 
employment. As per the terms of the loan agreements, the loan is repayable in five years in sixty equal 
instalments. The loans are secured against mortgage of property. The loan to Chief Executive of RPPL has been 
made in compliance with the requirements of the Act. The maximum aggregate amount due from key 
management personnel at the end of any month during the year was Rs 4 million (2018: Rs 8 million). 

16.1

17.1

16.2

16.3

16.4
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- note 17.1 4,000

               
8,000

- note 17.2 1,028

               

2,053

5,028

               

10,053

(3,000)

              

(4,000)

17. Long term loans to employees - secured

Loans to employees - considered good

Key management personnel

Others

Current portion shown under current assets

Key management personnel

Others (611)

                 

(892)

- note 20 (3,611) (4,892)

1,417 5,161

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand)
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17.1.1     

17.2

The reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to key management personnel is as follows:

This includes interest free motor vehicle loans given to employees. The Group contributes 80% of the cost of the 
vehicle which is recoverable in sixty equal monthly instalments from the employee in accordance with the 
Group's policy. These loans are secured against registration of cars in the joint name of the Group and the 
employee and against the accumulated provident fund balance of the relevant employee.

The above loans have not been carried at amortised cost as the effect of discounting is not considered material. 

19.1 These represent trade receivables from CPPA-G and are considered good. These are secured by a guarantee 
from the Government of Pakistan under the implementation agreements and are in the normal course of 
business and interest free, however, a delayed payment mark-up of three months KIBOR / reverse repo rate of 
State Bank of Pakistan plus 200 basis points per annum is charged in case the amounts are not paid within due 
dates. The rate of delayed payment mark-up charged during the year on outstanding amounts was 10.00% to 
14.75% (2018: 8.25% to 9.00%) per annum. These include unbilled receivables aggregating to Rs 712.71 
million (2018: Rs 414.26 million).               
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2019 2018 2019 2018

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,000
               

5,000
              

5,000
               

7,000

Repayments made during the year (2,000)
              

(2,000)
            

(2,000)
              

(2,000)

Balance at the end of the year 1,000

               

3,000

              

3,000

               

5,000

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

Chief Executive of RPPL Chief Financial Officer of RPPL

2019 2018

            647,924            559,464 

              19,038              67,285 

            666,962            626,749 

- note 18.2               (5,284)               (5,696)

            661,678            621,053 

                5,696                5,696 

                 (412)                      -   

                5,284                5,696 

- note 19.1        15,321,768       13,751,910 

            202,771            192,353 

15,524,539

      

13,944,263

- note 19.2           (202,771)           (192,353)

       15,321,768       13,751,910 

18. Stores, spares and loose tools

Spares

Stores

Provision for obsolete / slow-moving stores, 
spares and loose tools

18.2 Provision for obsolete / slow-moving stores, spares

and loose tools

Opening balance

Written off against provision

Closing balance

19. Trade debts - secured, considered good

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful debts 

18.1     Stores, spares and loose tools include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not 
distinguishable.

(Rupees in thousand)
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During the year, provision of Rs 10.42 million (2018: Rs 43.27 million) has been made on account of disputed 
amounts relating to energy and capacity charges and pass-through-items. The provision has been charged to 
administrative expenses as referred to in note 24.

This includes an advance amounting to Rs 0.32 million (2018 : Rs 0.71 million) to Siemens Pakistan 
Engineering Company Limited, a related party (group company).

This includes WWF contribution amounting to Rs 33.32 million (2018: Rs 33.32 million) based on accounting 
profit for tax year 2014 paid under protest after demand by taxation authorities. Since the provisions of WWF 
were not applicable to the Group in the light of Supreme Court's decision, CPPA-G has not acknowledged this 
amount as a valid pass through item. Therefore, the Group has filed for a refund from the taxation authorities. 
The Group has not made any provision against the recoverable amount as the management is confident that the 
ultimate outcome of the matter would be in favour of the Group, inter alia on the basis of the advice of the tax 
consultant and the relevant law and the facts. This also includes refundable WWF amounting to Rs 84.35 
million (2018: Rs 84.35 million) as referred to in note 14.1(xi) to these consolidated financial statements.

19.2.1

20.1

20.2
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2019 2018

19.2 Provision for doubtful debts

Opening balance             192,353            149,086 

Provision for the year - note 19.2.1               10,418              43,267 

Closing balance             202,771            192,353 

(Rupees in thousand)

2019 2018

- note 20.1               28,285              35,305 

                   331                   822 

            296,208            257,771 

- note 20.2             118,929            118,812 

- note 20.3             156,506            179,878 

                   677                7,444 

- note 20.4               49,305              54,581 

- note 20.5 &

 20.6               34,453              50,933 

20. Advances, prepayments and

other receivables

Advances - considered good:

    -  To suppliers

    -  To employees against expenses

Balances with statutory authorities:

-  Sales tax receivable

-  Receivable against WWF

Claims recoverable from CPPA-G for pass through items:

-  Workers' profit participation fund

Interest receivable

Prepayments

Other receivables

Current portion of long term loan to employees - secured - note 17                 3,611                4,892 

            688,305            710,438 

(Rupees in thousand)

20.3 Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance

Provision for the year 

Transfer to trade debts during the year

Closing balance

2019 2018

179,878
           

155,466

- note 10.3 156,506           179,878

336,384           335,344

(179,878)
          

(155,466)

156,506 179,878

(Rupees in thousand)
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Under the relevant provision of the PPAs with CPPA-G, payments to Workers' Profit Participation Funds are 
recoverable from CPPA-G as a pass through item.

This includes prepayment in respect of ERP annual support services cost made to Descon Corporation (Private) 
Limited, a related party (on the basis of common directorship) aggregating to Rs 0.10 million (2018: Rs 0.08 
million).

Includes the following amounts due from following related party:

The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was the 
same as the closing balances as at year end.

This includes an amount of Nil (2018: Rs 15 million) deposited with Faysal Bank Limited as 100% margin 
against the letter of guarantee in favour of the Director, Excise and Taxation Department, Karachi, as disclosed 
in note 14.1(xv)(a).

These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 4.14% to 10.60% per annum (2018: 3.75% to 5.80% per annum).

These term deposits are encashable within three months from the year end. However, these carry lien on debt 
service reserve account maintained in favour of SCB, as disclosed in note 7 to these consolidated financial 
statements.

20.4

20.5

20.6

20.5.1

Descon Power Solutions (Private) Limited (common directorship)
                 

- note 20.5.1 52 947

21. Bank balances

Cash at bank:

On current accounts

Term deposits

On savings accounts

2019 2018

            208,106                7,972 

- note 21.1 &

21.2          1,165,000         1,165,001 

- note 21.1             829,505            385,113 

         2,202,611         1,558,086 

(Rupees in thousand)

21.1

21.2

2019 2018

22. Revenue-net

Energy purchase price -gross 15,310,966
      

29,262,542

Sales tax (2,224,670)
       

(4,251,823)

Energy purchase price -net 13,086,296

      

25,010,719

Capacity purchase price 5,740,647

        

6,063,143

Other supplemental charges 1,151,315

        

732,945

Gas efficiency passed to CPPA-G (31,477)

            

(363,035)

19,946,781

      

31,443,772

(Rupees in thousand)
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23. Direct costs

       12,754,945 23,543,179

Salaries, benefits and other allowances - note 23.1               40,253 38,849

Operation and maintenance             800,334 990,300

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed
            121,821 

273,618

Write-down stores and spares - note 23.2
              31,249 

-

Purchase of energy from CPPA-G               76,199 33,028

Insurance             108,119 102,743

Lube oil consumed                 1,347 12,994

Repairs and maintenance               11,028 21,886

Travelling and conveyance                    257 387

Depreciation on operating fixed assets - note 15.1.1
         1,731,377 1,715,413

Generation license fee
                6,884 6,543

Electricity duty
                2,115 4,833

Colony maintenance
              17,566 22,401

Communication
                4,666 4,514

Security expense
                7,144 

               5,507 

Vehicle maintenance
                   852 2,076

Miscellaneous                 5,827 6,738

       15,721,983 26,785,009

RLNG consumed

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Includes Rs 2.27 million (2018: Rs 2.51 million) in respect of provident fund contribution by the Group.

This represents write-down of stores and spares to net realizable value. The write-down has been recognized as 
part of the overall impairment testing of the Parent Company's Power Generation CGU as referred to in note 
15.1.4.

23.1

23.2
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Includes Rs 0.03 million ( 2018: Rs 0.05 million), Rs 4.04 million (2018: Rs 4.43 million), Rs 0.70 million 
(2018: Rs 0.92 million) and Rs 7.56 million (2018: Rs 7.32 million) on account of accumulating compensated 
absences, contribution to provident fund, staff gratuity and contribution to gratuity fund, respectively.

This represents charges in respect of ERP annual support services rendered by Descon Corporation (Private) 
Limited, a related party (on the basis of common directorship).

24.1

24.2
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2019 2018

- note 24.1               88,768              93,269 

- note 31.2                    500                   500 

- note 24.2                 3,832                3,141 

              11,925                6,928 

                   648                   655 

                1,458                1,480 

                1,985                1,791 

- note 24.3                 4,063                4,044 

                6,181                6,249 

                   263                   236 

              71,226              50,216 

                1,619                1,437 

                2,212                2,324 

- note 16.1                    284                3,694 

- note 15.1.1 8,532

               

9,312

              
1,070

               

2,508

              
- note 24.4 628

                  

2,108

              
3,335

               

3,096

              

100

                  

100

                 

- note 19.2 10,418

             

43,267

            

-

                   

194

                 

24. Administrative expenses

Salaries, benefits and other allowances

Directors' meeting fee

ERP running cost

Traveling & conveyance 

Utilities

Postage and telephone 

Printing and stationery

Auditors' remuneration

Rent, rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional expenses

Fees and subscription

Entertainment

Amortisation on intangible assets

Depreciation on operating fixed assets

Vehicle maintenance

Donations

Insurance

Professional tax

Provision for doubtful debts

Training expenses

Miscellaneous                 6,307                6,129 

225,354 242,678

(Rupees in thousand)

24.3 Auditors' remuneration

The charges for professional services (exclusive of sales tax) consist of the following

     in respect of auditors' services for:

Statutory audit

Half yearly review

Certifications required by various regulations

Reimbursement of expenses

3,342

               

3,119

280

                 

266

222

                 

439

219 220

4,063 4,044
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The donation in the last year was made to Bloomfield Hall School at Khanewal plant site. None of the directors 
or their spouses had any interest in the donee.

This represents trade debts written off during the year being uncollectible.

24.4

25.
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2019 2018

97,713             82,857            
37,390
             

112,157
          

7
                      

4,054
              

1
                      

6
                     

1,958
               

2,093
              14,507

             
20,678

            33
                    

10
                   151,609

           

221,855

          

222,389

           

297,281

          212,478

           

78,172

            
558,640

           

478,615

          
29,699

             

48,523

            
18,205

             

14,182

            
3,540

               

1,892

              19,735

             

7,235

              -

                   

321

                 

46,701

             

106,233

          

43

                    

7,060

              

1,111,430

        

1,039,514

        

122,944

           

256,085

          

1,414

               

(137,057)

         

124,358

           

119,028

          
- note 9.2 46,520 45,397

170,878 164,425

26. Other income

Profit on bank deposits

Un-realised fair value gain on derivative financial instrument

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Exchange gain - net

Scrap sales

Liabilities no longer payable written back

Others

27. Finance cost

Interest/mark-up on:

Long term financing - secured

Short term borrowings - secured 

Exchange loss on foreign currency long term loan (Facility B)

Guarantee commission

Lenders' fees and charges

Lenders' related other costs

Late payments surcharge on:

Late payments to SNGPL

Late payments to Descon Power Solutions (Private) Limited - related

      party (common directorship)

Realised loss on derivative financial instrument

Bank charges

28. Taxation

Current

For the year

Prior years'

Deferred taxation

(Rupees in thousand)
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The Group, along with certain related companies, had obtained certificate of registration and designation letter 
of a group (hereinafter referred to as 'Taxation Group') from SECP on June 5, 2015 and September 9, 2016, 
respectively, and the same were registered as Taxation Group with SECP under Group Companies Registration 
Regulations, 2008 to avail group relief under section 59B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. At the time of 
registration of Taxation Group, inter-corporate dividend [PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent 
Company) to the Parent Company] was exempt from tax for companies entitled for group relief under Clause 
103A of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, subsequent to the 
registration of the Taxation Group, this clause was amended through Finance Act, 2016 and the exemption in 
respect of inter-corporate dividend was withdrawn. The Group is of the view, that since the Taxation Group had 
been registered as a group before the amendment in law, the Taxation Group remains entitled for the exemption. 
Based on the advice of the Group's legal advisor, management believes that there are meritorious grounds to 
defend its case in the courts of law with the taxation authorities. Consequently, no provision of Rs 769.97 
million (2018: Rs 566.70 million) for tax on dividend income from PMCL (wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Parent Company) for the tax years from 2016 to 2018 has been recognized in these consolidated financial 
statements.

28.2

                     2,941,815

        

3,598,426

        

853,126

           

1,079,528

        

(777,041)

          

(1,008,651)

      

-

                   

(2,448)

            

291

                  

333

                 

93,088

             

232,720

          

28.1 Relationship between tax income and accounting profit

Profit before taxation

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2018: 30%)

Tax effect of amounts that are:

Exempt as referred to in note 4.2

Allowable as tax credit

Not deductible for tax purposes

Subject to final tax regime

Prior years' tax 1,414 (137,057)

(682,248) (915,103)

170,878 164,425

         2,941,815 3,598,426

 

- note 15.1.1          1,739,909 1,724,725

       
 

- note 15.1.4               73,172 -

                 

- note 16                    284 3,694

              

- note 26                  (761) (20,678)

          

- note 26             (97,713) (82,857)

          

- note 26                      (7) (4,054)

            

- note 27          1,111,426 1,039,514

        

- note 23.2               31,249 -

                 

- note 25               24,636 -

                 

- note 19.2               10,418 43,268

            

- note 24.1                    703 922

                 

- note 24.1                      26 54

                   

- note 24.1                 7,560 7,316

              

                     

            

        

29. Cash flow information

29.1 Cash generated from operations

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non cash charges and other items:

- Depreciation on operating fixed assets

- Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

- Amortisation on intangible assets

- Liabilities no longer payable written back

- Profit on bank deposits

- Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

- Finance cost

- Write-down of stores and spares

-  Trade debts written off

- Provision for doubtful debts

- Provision for staff gratuity

- Provision for accumulating compensated absences

- Provision for retirement benefits

2019 2018
       

(Rupees in thousand)
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- note 15.2.1                    150 3

                   410 13,136

- note 26             (37,390) (112,157)

- note 26                      (1) (6)

                   

5,805,886

        

6,211,306

        

            (72,183) 32,515

            

                4,050 3,233

              

       (1,604,912) (930,228)

        

              14,009 (64,538)

          

       (1,659,036) (959,018)

        

- Capital work-in-progress written off

- Capital spares consumed

- Un-realized gain on derivative financial instrument

- Exchange gain - net

Profit before working capital changes

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:

Decrease/(increase) in current assets

 - Stores, spares and loose tools

 - Inventory of fuel oil

 - Trade debts - secured, considered good

 - Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities

 - Trade and other payables          1,355,873 (1,529,451)

      

(303,163)

          

(2,488,469)

      

5,502,723

        

3,722,837

        

- note 21 2,202,611 1,558,086

- note 11 (2,927,075)

       

(1,816,641)

      

(724,464)

          

(258,555)

        

Opening 

balance as at 

July 1, 2018 Cash flows

Other changes*

Closing 

balance as at 

June 30, 2019

4,685,111        (3,519,296)     946,851           2,112,666        

29.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances

Short term borrowings - secured 

29.3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

 financing activities

Long term loans

Derivative financial instrument 45,232             (46,701)          9,311               7,842              

2019 2018

                
(Rupees in thousand)



Relationship with the Group Nature of transactions

i.  Holding company

Descon Engineering Limited - till

     December 15, 2017 Dividends paid

Common costs charged to the Group

ii.  Other related parties

On the basis of common directorship

Descon Engineering Limited - from

     December 15, 2017 Supply of spares and services

Common costs charged to the Group

Descon Power Solutions (Private)

      Limited Operation and maintenance contractor's

     fee

Service agreement of generators

Purchases of spare parts

Supply of spares and services

Purchase of major maintenance fee

Common costs charged to the Group

Descon Corporation (Private)

     Limited Supply of spares and services

Common costs charged to the Group

2019 2018

                     -           1,691,177 

                2,455                1,104 

8,863

               

6,995

              

                     -                  2,037 

453,595 439,656 

 - 5,281 

2,905 70,399 

2,799 2,311 

 - 1,746 

451                     78 

14,377

             

8,254

              

362

                  

529

                 

(Rupees in thousand)

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED
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* Other changes include non-cash movements and interest payments which are presented as operating cash 
flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The related parties comprise the holding company, ultimate parent, subsidiaries and associates of holding 
company and ultimate parent, group companies, related parties on the basis of common directorship, Investor 
under IAS 28, 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' (non-controlling interest), key management 
personnel of the Group and its holding company and post-employment benefit plans (Gratuity Fund and 
Provident Fund). Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including any director 
(whether executive or otherwise) of the Company. The Group in the normal course of business carries out 
transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under receivables 
and payables. Significant related party transactions have been disclosed in respective notes in these 
consolidated financial statements other than the following:

Transactions with related parties30.
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Relationship with the Group Nature of transactions

Group companies

Descon Holdings (Private) Limited Dividends paid

Siemens AG Purchase of operation and maintenance services

Purchase of long term maintenance services

Supply of spares and services

Siemens Pakistan Engineering

Company Limited Purchase of operation and maintenance services

Purchase of long term maintenance services

Supply of spares and services

Investor under IAS 28

Siemens Project Ventures GmbH Dividends paid

iii.  Key management Short term employee benefits - note 30.2

        personnel Post employment benefits - note 30.2

Long term benefits - note 30.2

Other benefits - note 30.2

Dividends paid

iv.  Retirement benefit

obligations Expense charged in respect of defined benefit plan -

gratuity fund

Expense charged in respect of contributory

provident fund

2019 2018

95

                    

240

                 

56,506

             

53,883

            

182,435

           

313,537

          

173,061

           

6,956

              

1,796

               

1,796

              

64,347

             

102,235

          

31,872

             

936

                 

538,070
           

1,345,176
       

62,284

             

61,698

            

7,835

               

8,111

              

18

                    

37

                   

665
                  

724
                 

70
                    

208
                 

7,560               7,316              

                6,305                6,938 

(Rupees in thousand)

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on mutually agreed terms and conditions. 'There are 
no transactions with key management personnel other than under the terms of employment.

This represents remuneration of Chief Executive, a non-executive Director and an executive that is included in 
the remuneration disclosed in note 31.1 to these consolidated financial statements.

Information about the related party incorporated outside the Pakistan, with whom the Group had entered into 
transactions, is as follows:

30.1

30.2

30.3

Name of company: Siemens AG

Registered address of the company: Siemens Aktiengesellschaft, Werner-von-Siemens-Straße 1 80333,

Muenchen, Germany

Country of incorporation: Germany

Aggregate percentage of shareholding, including

shareholding through other companies 

         or entities: 26% of issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of RPPL

Name of Chief Executive Officer or  Principal 

Officer or Authorized Agent: Joe Kaeser

Operational status:

Auditor's opinion on latest available financial

statements: Unmodified

The company is engaged in activities in the field of electrification, 

automation and digitalisation. It is also a supplier of systems for 
power generation and transmission.
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During the year the Group paid meeting fee amounting to Rs 0.50 million (2018: Rs 0.50 million) to its non-
executive (independent) director.

In addition to the above, certain executives of the Group are provided with free use of Group maintained cars. 

31.2

31.3
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All the related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions or had arrangements/agreements in 
place during the year have been disclosed in relevant notes to these consolidated financial statements.

The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements for remuneration and certain benefits 
to Chief Executive, Directors and Executive of the Group are as follows:

30.4

31 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

31.1

Chief Executive Executive Directors

2019 2018 2019 2018

3,489
               

3,156
              

-
                   

-

1 1 -

                   

-

Non Executive Directors Executives

2019 2018 2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)

-

                   

-

                 

77,850

             

80,656

-

                   

-

                 

18

                    

37

-

                   

-

                 

578

                  

773

-

                   

-

                 

5,507

               

6,118

-

                   

-

                 

5,088

               

4,938

582

                  

-

                 

8,538

               

6,707

-

                   

-

                 

510

                  

510

-

                   

-

                 

511

                  

511

665

                  

724

                 

-

                   

-

1,247 724 98,600 100,250

Managerial remuneration

Number of person(s)

Managerial remuneration

Accumulating compensated absences

Staff gratuity

Contributions to provident fund

Contributions to gratuity fund

House rent, utilities and other allowances

Bonus

Reimbursable expenses against vehicles

Other services rendered

Number of person(s) 6 6 10 12

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

2019 2018

38 40 

39 40 

32. Number of employees

Total number of employees as at June 30

Average number of  employees during the year

33. Disclosure relating to Provident Fund

The investments by the provident fund in collective investment schemes, listed equity and debt securities have 
been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the conditions specified thereunder.
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The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price 
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme 
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the 
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the 'Board') of the Parent Company. The Board 
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign 
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. All treasury related transactions 
are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or 
receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising mainly from USD and Euro. The Group’s exposure to foreign 
currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Market risk

Currency risk

Exposure to currency risk

34. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors34.1

a)

i)
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Rupees USD Euro

31,520

            

-

                   

169

(2,112,666)

     

(12,843)

            

-

(1,292)

            

(8)

                     

-

(460,601)

        

(110)

                 

(2,366)

(2,543,039)

     

(12,961)

            

(2,197)

Rupees USD Euro

22,423

            

-

                   

158

(4,685,111)

     

(38,529)

            

-

(1,899)
            

(16)
                   

-

(605,778)
        

-
                   

(4,279)

Other receivables

Long term financing - secured

Accrued mark-up on long term financing - secured

Trade and other payables

Net exposure

Other receivables

Short term borrowings - secured 

Accrued mark-up on long term financing - secured

Trade and other payables

Net exposure (5,270,365)      (38,545)             (4,121)

2019

(Amounts in thousand)

2018

(Amounts in thousand)
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Foreign exchange risk in US Dollars is mitigated by the indexation mechanism for tariff available under PPAs.

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
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2019 2018 2019 2018

USD 121.60 143.05 113.30

Euro

164.50

186.99 141.57 164.28 130.86

Statement of financial position 
date rate

Average rate

Sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

At June 30, 2019, if the Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the USD with all other variables held 
constant, the impact on profit for the year would have been Rs 46.54 million (2018: Rs 101.08 million) 
lower/higher mainly as a result of exchange loss/gain on translation of USD denominated financial instruments. 
Since the exchange differences related to foreign currency loan are capitalized, the impact on property, plant and 
equipment would have been Rs 60.07 million (2018: Rs 133.32 million) higher/lower mainly as a result of 
exchange loss/gain on translation of USD denominated financial instruments.

At June 30, 2019, if the Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the Euro with all other variables held 
constant, the impact on profit for the year would have been Rs 20.55 million (2018: Rs 29.17 million) 
lower/higher mainly as a result of exchange loss/gain on translation of Euro denominated financial instruments.

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises on bank balances in 
savings accounts, long term loans, short term borrowings and derivative financial instrument. The interest rate 
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments at the statement of financial position date was as 
under:

(ii)

2019 2018

         1,165,000         1,165,001 

            829,505            385,113 

         1,994,505         1,550,114 

                     -                        -   

         1,994,505         1,550,114 

       11,610,003       12,116,924 

       (2,112,666)        (4,685,111)

       (2,927,075)        (1,816,641)

              (7,842)             (45,232)

       (5,047,583)        (6,546,984)

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Term deposits

Bank balances - saving accounts

Financial liabilities

Net exposure

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets

Trade debts - secured, considered good, overdue

Financial liabilities

Long term financing - secured

Short term borrowings - secured 

Derivative financial instrument

Net exposure          6,562,420         5,569,940 

(Rupees in thousand)
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The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the statement of financial position date would not affect profit or loss of the 
Group.

If interest rates on variable rate financial instruments, at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher/lower with 
all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been Rs 67.95 million (2018: Rs 55.02 
million) higher/lower (2018: higher/lower) mainly as a result of higher/lower net interest income (2018: 
income) on floating rate instruments.

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether 
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors 
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Group is not exposed to equity price risk 
since there are no investments in equity instruments traded in the market at the reporting date. The Group is also 
not exposed to commodity price risk since it does not hold any financial instrument based on commodity prices. 

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other 
party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk mainly arises from deposits with banks and trade and 
other receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Other price risk

Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk and concentration of credit risk

iii)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
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b)

i)

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

739
                  

369
                 

15,321,768
      

13,751,910
     

191,636
           

238,255
          

2,202,611
        

1,558,086
       

17,716,754

      

15,548,620

     

3,711,765

        

        1,634,986 

3,073,506

        

3,718,330

       2,923,163

        

        4,895,040 

5,816,105

        

        3,700,018 

Long term deposits

Trade debts - secured, considered good

Other receivables

Bank balances

As of June 30, age analysis of trade debts was as follows: 

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due 0-30 days

Past due 31-120 days

Past due more than 120 days

Provision for doubtful debts (202,771)           (196,464)

       15,321,768       13,751,910 
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The Group's only customer is CPPA-G. The credit risk on trade debts from CPPA-G is managed by a guarantee 
from the Government of Pakistan under the implementation agreements and by continuous follow-ups for 
release of payments from CPPA-G. Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit 
enhancements. The Group establishes a provision for doubtful debts that represents its estimate of incurred 
losses in respect of trade debts, if required.

The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about external counterparty default rate:

ii) Credit quality of major financial assets
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Rating 2019 2018

Short term Long term Agency

15,321,768

      

13,751,910

     

 A1+  AA  PACRA                        2 2

                     

 A1+  AA+  PACRA               65,092 1,462
              

 A-1+  AAA  PACRA             762,925 386,545
          

 A1+  AAA  PACRA 1,182,176 1,163,811       

 A1+  AAA  PACRA                 1,912 1,900              

 A1+  AA  PACRA                 4,293 4,302
              

 A1+  AAA  PACRA                        1 -
                 

CPPA-G

Faysal Bank  Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank

National Bank of Pakistan

SCB

MCB Bank Limited

The Bank of Punjab

Allied Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited  A1+  AAA  JCR-VIS             186,210 64

                   

       17,524,379       15,309,996 

Not available

Rating

(Rupees in thousands)

Due to the Group's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due 
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter 
parties on their obligations to the Group. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that, as far as possible, it always has sufficient liquidity 
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable loss 
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

c) Liquidity risk
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Carrying Less than One to five After five 
amount  one year years years

Financial liabilities

Long term financing - secured 2,112,666        2,112,666                      -                        -   

Trade and other payables 3,018,678        3,018,678                      -                        -   

Mark-up accrued 97,591             97,591                      -                        -   

Derivative financial instrument 7,842               7,842                      -                        -   

Short term borrowings - secured 2,927,075        2,927,075                      -                        -   

Unclaimed dividend 190,673
           

          190,673                      -                        -   

         8,354,525        8,354,525                      -                        -   

Carrying Less than One to five After five 
amount  one year years years

Financial liabilities

Long term financing - secured 4,685,111 4,011,447

       

673,664

           

                     -   

Trade and other payables 1,664,352 1,664,352

       

                     -                        -   

Mark-up accrued 47,491 47,491

            

                     -                        -   

Derivative financial instrument 45,232 -

                 

              45,232                      -   

Short term borrowings - secured          1,816,641 1,816,641

       

                     -                        -   

Unclaimed dividend                 1,345 1,345

              

                     -                        -   

         8,260,172        7,541,276             718,896                      -   

2018

Maturities

2019

Maturities

------------------------------ (Rupees in thousand) ------------------------------

------------------------------ (Rupees in thousand) ------------------------------

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and cash flow position. The liquidity risk is managed by using financial 
model and a continuous follow-up for collecting receivables from CPPA-G and managing debt repayments on 
due dates, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 
to the Group's reputation. However, under current circular debt issue faced by the power sector, the Group is 
significantly exposed to liquidity risk.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard Group's ability to continue as a going concern in 
order to provide returns for shareholders and lenders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the 
cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends 
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders through repurchase of shares, issue new shares or sell assets 
to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Group monitors 
the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by total 
capital employed. Net borrowings are calculated as total borrowings including current and non-current 
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital employed includes equity as shown in the statement of 
financial position, plus net borrowings.

34.2 Capital risk management
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In accordance with the terms of agreement with the lender of long term financing (as disclosed in note 7 to these 
consolidated financial statements), RPPL is required to comply with the following financial covenants:

- the gearing ratio shall be not more than 1:1;
- the debt service coverage ratio shall not fall below 1.5:1; and
- the debt to EBITDA ratio shall remain below 2.5:1.

RPPL has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period. As at June 30, 2019, the relevant debt 
service coverage ratio was 1.84:1 (2018: 1.92:1), the gearing ratio  was 0.11:1 (2018: 0.18:1) and the debt to 
EBITDA ratio was 0.54:1 (2018: 0.78:1).

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements 
approximate their fair values. 

There are no significant financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable master 
netting arrangements and similar agreements.

34.3 Fair value estimation
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2019 2018

         5,039,741         6,501,752 

- note 29.2             724,464            258,555 

         5,764,205         6,760,307 

       28,009,218       27,209,488 

       33,048,959       33,711,240 

Borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents

Net borrowings

Total equity

Total capital employed

Gearing ratio 17.44% 20.05%

(Rupees in thousand)

34.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

34.5 Financial instruments by categories

 Financial 
assets at 

amortised cost 

 Loans and 
receivables 

2019 2018

739

                  

369

5,028

               

10,053

15,321,768

      

13,751,910

191,636

           

238,255

2,202,611

        

1,558,086

17,721,782 15,558,673

Assets as per statement of financial position

Long term deposits

Long term loans to employees - secured

Trade debts - secured, considered good

Other receivables

Bank balances

(Rupees in thousand)

The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 is as follows:



      

2019 2018

2,112,666

        

4,685,111

3,018,678

        

1,664,352

190,673

           

1,345

2,927,075

        

1,816,641

97,591

             

47,491

7,842 45,232

8,354,525 8,260,172

(MWh) 3,710,556 3,710,556

(MWh) 2,713,928 3,299,886

Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term financing - secured

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings - secured 

Mark-up accrued

Derivative financial instrument

35. Plant capacity and actual generation

Installed capacity [based on 8,760 hours (2018: 8,760 hours)]

Practical maximum output

Actual energy delivered (MWh) 1,057,879 2,810,958

 Financial liabilities at amortized 
cost 

(Rupees in thousand)

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

The actual generation for power plants takes into account all scheduled outages approved by CPPA-G. Actual 
output is dependent on the load demanded by CPPA-G, natural gas / RLNG supply by SNGPL under as-and-
when available basis, the plant availability and mean-site conditions.
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2019 2018

1,529,573

           

1,994,984

363,380,000

       

363,380,000

4.21

                    

5.49

36. Earnings per share - basic and diluted

36.1 Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of

the Parent Company (Rupees in thousand)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Number)

Basic earnings per share (Rupees)

36.2 Diluted earnings per share

A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Group does not have any convertible instruments in 
issue as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to 
convert is exercised.
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The Group's principal subsidiaries as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 are set out below. Unless otherwise 
stated, they have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the Group, and the 
proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation 
or registration is also their principal place of business. 

37. Interests in other entities

37.1
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Subsidiaries

37.2 Non-controlling interest

Name of entity

Principal 

activities

2019 2018 2019 2018

Power 

Management 

Company 

(Private) 

Limited

Lahore, Pakistan 100% 100% 0% 0% Invest, manage,

operate, run,

own and build

power projects,

intermediate 

holding 

company of

RPPL

Rousch 

(Pakistan) 

Power Limited

Islamabad, 

Pakistan

59.98% 59.98% 40.02% 40.02% Generate and

supply 

electricity to

CPPA-G

Place of business/ 

country of 

incorporation

Ownership interest held by the 

Group

Ownership interest held by non-

controlling interests

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

18,446,379
         

16,146,528
      

8,152,138           6,478,943        

10,294,241         9,667,585        

17,279,678
         

18,435,958
      

18,185
                

1,581,932
        

17,261,493
         

16,854,026
      

27,555,734
         

26,521,611
      

Summarised statement of financial position

Current assets

Current liabilities

Current net assets 

Non-current assets

Non-current liabilities

Non-current net assets

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling 

interest 11,026,973 10,613,034

Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited

Set out below is summarised financial information for a subsidiary that has non-controlling interest that is 
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the subsidiary is before inter-company eliminations:



               

Summarised statement of 

comprehensive income

Revenue-net 19,472,621

         

29,822,578

      Profit for the year 3,130,106

           

3,597,548

        

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1,442

                  

(104)

               
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,131,548

           

3,597,444

        

Profit attributable to non-controlling interest 1,241,364

           

1,439,017

        

Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to 
non-controlling interest 577

                     

(42)

                 

Dividends provided for non-controlling interest 828,002

              

1,035,003

        
Summarised cash flows

Net cash inflow from operating activities 4,703,250

           

3,276,090

        

Net cash inflow from investing activities 56,862 78,471

Net cash outflow from financing activities (5,635,174) (8,155,400)

Net decrease in cash and cash 

equivalents during the year (875,062) (4,800,839)

ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED
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There were no transactions with non-controlling interest during the years ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 
2019.

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect better presentation of events and 
transactions for the purpose of comparison, however, no significant reclassifications have been made.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on September 30, 2019 by the Board of 
Directors of the Parent Company.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company have proposed a final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 
2019 of Rs 3/- per share (2018: Nil), amounting to Rs 1,090,140,000/- (2018: Nil) at their meeting held on 
September 30, 2019 for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 25, 2019

Transactions with non-controlling interests 

Corresponding figures

37.3

38.

Date of authorization for issue39.

Chief Executive DirectorChief Financial Officer

                 

2019 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Rousch (Pakistan) Power Limited

Event after the reporting date40.
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FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company ALTERN ENERGY LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-06-2019

     ------Shareholdings------
2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

62 1 100 715
62 101 500 29,275
46 501 1,000 45,078
70 1,001 5,000 208,230
23 5,001 10,000 179,700

7 10,001 15,000 88,500
5 15,001 20,000 94,000
7 20,001 25,000 163,500
4 25,001 30,000 118,500
3 30,001 35,000 103,000
5 35,001 40,000 191,500
2 40,001 45,000 90,000
2 45,001 50,000 95,500
1 50,001 55,000 52,000
2 55,001 60,000 118,500
3 65,001 70,000 205,000
3 70,001 75,000 220,500
1 80,001 85,000 82,500
1 85,001 90,000 87,500
5 95,001 100,000 500,000
1 100,001 105,000 100,500
1 120,001 125,000 125,000
1 125,001 130,000 130,000
1 180,001 185,000 183,000
1 185,001 190,000 188,359
1 195,001 200,000 200,000
1 200,001 205,000 203,000
1 225,001 230,000 230,000
3 245,001 250,000 746,500
1 300,001 305,000 300,500
1 310,001 315,000 311,000
1 325,001 330,000 327,000
1 495,001 500,000 500,000
1 565,001 570,000 568,000
1 590,001 595,000 593,500
1 1,015,001 1,020,000 1,016,500
1 1,195,001 1,200,000 1,200,000
2 1,290,001 1,295,000 2,588,500
1 1,990,001 1,995,000 1,993,500
1 3,300,001 3,305,000 3,303,725
1 5,055,001 5,060,000 5,056,500
1 6,995,001 7,000,000 7,000,000
1 60,475,001 60,480,000 60,475,416
1 61,965,001 61,970,000 61,968,939
1 211,395,001 211,400,000 211,397,063

342 363,380,000
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S. No. NAME HOLDING % AGE
DIRECTORS, CEO THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN

1 MR. FAISAL DAWOOD (CDC) 22,500 0.0062
2 MR. TAIMUR DAWOOD (CDC) 1,000 0.0003
3 MR. FAROOQ NAZIR (CDC) 500 0.0001
4 MR. KHALID SALMAN KHAN 0 0.0000
5 MR. SHAH MUHAMMAD CH. (CDC) 500 0.0001
6 SYED RIZWAN ALI SHAH (CDC) 500 0.0001
7 MR. FAZAL HUSSAIN ASIM (CDC) 500 0.0001

25,500 0.0070

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKING & RELATED PARTIES
1 DEL POWER (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 211,397,063 58.1752

NIT & ICP 0 0.0000

FINANCIAL INSTITUTION
1 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED (CDC) 1,993,500 0.5486
2 SONERI BANK LIMITED - ORDINARY SHARES (CDC) 5,056,500 1.3915

7,050,000 1.9401

MODARABAS & MUTUAL FUNDS
1 CDC - TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND (CDC) 327,000 0.0900

 
327,000 0.0900

PENSION FUNDS
1 CDC - TRUSTEE PAKISTAN PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND (CDC) 10,500 0.0029

10,500 0.0029

INSURANCE COMPANIES 0 0.0000

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES
1 OCTAGON INTERNATIONAL (PVT) LTD 1,000 0.0003
2 CS ENERGY (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 188,359 0.0518
3 CRESCENT STEEL AND ALLIED PRODUCTS LTD. (CDC) 60,475,416 16.6425
4 CS CAPITAL (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 3,303,725 0.9092
5 DESCON HOLDINGS (PVT) LIMITED.(CDC) 30,000 0.0083
6 DOSSA COTTON & GENERAL TRADING (PVT) LIMITED (CDC) 246,500 0.0678
7 ELAHI CAPIATL (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 125,000 0.0344
8 ELAHI CAPIATL (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 1,500 0.0004
9 FAZAL HOLDINGS (PVT.) LIMITED (CDC) 1,295,000 0.3564

10 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED (CDC) 1 0.0000
11 SAPPHIRE HOLDING LIMITED (CDC) 100,500 0.0277
12 SARFRAZ MAHMOOD (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 500 0.0001
13 SOFCOM (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 8,000 0.0022
14 TOPLINE SECURITIES LIMITED -MF (CDC) 311,000 0.0856
15 UHF CONSULTING (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 1,000 0.0003
16 ALLIANCE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CDC) 130,000 0.0358

66,217,501 18.2227
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FOREIGN COMPANY
1 SAUDI ARABIAN CONSTRUCTION & REPAIR CO. LTD. 61,968,939 17.0535
2 HABIB BANK AG ZURICH, DEIRA DUBAI (CDC) 34,500 0.0095

62,003,439 17.0630

OTHERS
1 TRUSTEE CITY SCHOOLS PROVIDENT FUND TRUST (CDC) 21,000 0.0058
2 SONERI BANK LIMITED EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND (CDC) 500,000 0.1376
4 SONERI BANK LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND (CDC) 593,500 0.1633

1,114,500 0.3067

SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL): 15,234,497 4.1924
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN): 0 0.0000

15,234,497 4.1924

TOTAL: 363,380,000 100.0000

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL

S. No. Name Holding % AGE

1 DEL POWER (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 211,397,063 58.1752
2 SAUDI ARABIAN CONSTRUCTION & REPAIR CO. LTD. 61,968,939 17.0535
3 CRESCENT STEEL AND ALLIED PRODUCTS LTD. (CDC) 60,475,416 16.6425

333,841,418 91.8712

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL

S. No. Name Holding % AGE

1 DESCON ENGINEERING LIMITED (CDC) 211,397,063 58.1752
2 SAUDI ARABIAN CONSTRUCTION & REPAIR CO. LTD. 61,968,939 17.0535
3 CRESCENT STEEL AND ALLIED PRODUCTS LTD. (CDC) 60,475,416 16.6425

333,841,418 91.8712

During the financial year the trading in shares of the company by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary

and their spouses and minor children is as follows

S. No. Name Sale Purchase

NIL



Notice is hereby given that 25th Annual General Meeting of Altern Energy Limited (the “Company”) will be held on 
Friday, October 25th 2019 at 10:30 am at Descon Headquarters, 18-K.M, Ferozepur Road Lahore – 54760 to transact the 
following business: 

    1. To confirm minutes of the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Wednesday, October 24,  2018.

    2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
30th June 2019 together with the reports of Directors' and Auditors' thereon.

    3. To approve, as recommended by the Board of Directors, payment of Final Cash Dividend @ 30% i.e. PKR 3.00 
per share for the year ended June 30, 2019. This is in addition to Interim Cash Dividend @ 31.5% i.e. Rs. 
3.15 per ordinary share already paid during the year.

    4. To appoint External Auditors for the ensuing year and fix their remuneration. (The present auditors M/s. A.F. 
Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, have retired and being eligible have offered themselves for re-
appointment).

    5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

    A. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 17-10-2019 to 25-10-2019 (both days 
inclusive). Transfers received at the Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, 1-K, Commercial Model Town Lahore the close 
of business on 16 October 2019 will be treated in time for the purpose of above entitlement to the transferees.

    B. Members are requested to attend in person along with Computerized National Identity Card (“CNIC”) or 
appoint some other member as proxy and send their proxy duly witnessed so as to reach the registered office of 
the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the said Meeting.

    C. In pursuance of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Circular No. 18/2017 dated August 1, 2017, it is 
mandatory for all listed companies to pay dividend only by way of electronic mode, directly into the bank 
accounts of entitled shareholders. Keeping in view the same, all cash dividend, if declared by the Company in 
future will be directly transferred in bank accounts of the shareholders. Therefore, you are requested to 
provide/update your IBAN to our Share Registrar. Accordingly, all CDC shareholders are requested to send 
their IBAN details directly to their concerned Stock Broker / Central Depository Company of Pakistan.

    D. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring his/her 
original CNIC or passport, Account and participant's I.D. Numbers to prove his/her identity, and in case of 
proxy it must enclose an attested copy of his / her CNIC or passport. Representatives of corporate members 
should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

    E. Shareholders are requested to immediately notify change in address, if any, to the Company's Share Registrar, 
M/s. Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore and also furnish 
attested photocopy of their CNIC as per Listing Regulations, if not provided earlier.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

       

By Order of the Board

Place :  Lahore           Salman Ali
Date: October 03, 2019                Company Secretary

NOTES:
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Form of Proxy 
Altern Energy Limited

IMPORTANT 
This form of proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited 
duly completed, at the Company's registered office at Descon 
Headquarters, 18-KM, Ferozepur Road, Lahore not less than 48 
hours before the time of holding the meeting. A Proxy must be 
member of the Company. Signature should agree with the 
specimen register with the Company. Please quote registered 
Folio / CDC Account numbers.

Shareholder Folio No.

OR

CDC Participant I.D.No.

& Sub Account No.

I/We

of

being a member of Altern Energy Limited entitled to vote and holder 

of

ordinary shares, hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Mst.

of 

Who is also a member of the Company, as my/our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me 

/ us on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Descon Headquarters,1 8 -

km, Ferozepur Road, Lahore on Friday, October 25, 2019 at 10:30 am and at anyAdjournment thereof. 

As witness my / our hand this  day of 2019

Signed by the said  in the presence of 

(Member's Signature)

Place

Date 

Affix Rs. 5/
Revenue Stamp which 

must be cancelled 
either by signature over

it or by some other
means

(Witness's Signature)
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